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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ' - %

NOTICE

- Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fourth Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the company will

be held on Friday, the 30™ day of September, 2016 al 1200 Hrs. at the Registered Office of the Company at g"
KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar to transact the following business- .

1

ORDINARY BUSINESS '

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audiled Balance sheet as al March 31, 2016 and the Prolit & Loss
Account for the year ended on that date together with the Reports of Auditors’ and Directors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a Direcior in piace of Ms. Sapna Kansal, DIN 06892410 who retires by rotation and is eligible for

reappointment, .

3. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Qrdinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant Lo the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of M/s Jain & Anil Sood, Chartered Accountants, Chandigar'h. the retiring
auditors of the Company, ba and is hereby ratified to enable them 1o hold office from the condusion of this
Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting required to be held for tha financial
year 2016-2017, at @ remuneration to be decided by (he Board of Direclors.” §

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Chandigarh .

Date: 05.09.2016 (Gopal Krishan Gupta )
Regd. Office: . Managing Director
9™. KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar

NOTES: - &

1. A member entitled to altend and vote al the Annual General Meeting is enlitled to appoint a proxy o attend -
and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a member of the company. 3 ’

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from 26" day of Sebtember, 2016 to 30 day of September,

2016 (both days inclusive).

3. The inslrument of proxy, in order to be effective, should be deposited at the regisle?éd office of the company,
duty completed and signed, not less than 48 hours bafora the commencemeni of the meeting. Proxies subrmitted
on behalf of Limited Companies or socielies alc. must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as
applicable.

4. In case of joint hoiders attending the Mesting. the jBint holder who is higher in order of names under a given
Folio/DPID-Client (in respect of dematerialized shares) will be entitled 1o vote.

5. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of this Notice along with dully filled admission slip for
attending the meeting. - - ' , .

8. Members holding shares in physical form are requested lo notify change in address, if any, to the Company at
its Registered Office or to the Registrar & Transfer Agents-M/s Indus Portfolio Private Limited. G-65, Bali Nagar,
New Defhi-110015. . @

" 7. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to notify change in their address, if any, o their
Depository Participant.
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8. Pursuant to provisions.of the Companies Act, 2013 red with the Rutes framod there under, the company may =

s8nd notica of general meeting and other documents through elecironic mode. Furthar, pursuant lo the first

proviso to the Rule 18 of the Companieses{Management and Administration} Rule, 2014, the Company shall

. provide an advance opportunity at least once in a financial year to the members to register their e-mail address -

~~ -and:changes therein. In.view.of-thg-same,-members-are .-requestad.{o-kindly-update.their-g-mai -address-wilh
depository perticipants in case of holding-shares in demat form. If holding shares in physical form. Members are

raquested to inform their e-mail |D to the company. ' ' ) '

9. Electronic copy of the Notice of §eneral meeting of the company is being sent to all the members whose email.'
\ds are registered with the*company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes. For members who
‘have nol registered their email address. physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. ’

40. Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companles Act, 2013 read with Companies (Managor_nerit and
Administration) Rulas, 2014 and the provisions of Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges. the-Company is

pleased to offer e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronicaily on all resolutions set forth in the

Notice convening Annual General Meeting 1o be held on Friday, the 30" day of September, 2016 al 12:00 Hrs. ) -
al the registered office of the companfat 97, KM Slone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hiser.
The Company has engaged the services of CDSL lo provide the e-voting facility. . -

$1. The instructions for memb%s for E-Voling are as under:
-

“< (i} The period begins on Tuesday, the 27" day of September, 2016 al 8.00 A.M. and ends on Thursday,
the 20" Hay of September, 2016 at 5.00 P.M. During this period shareholders” of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, the 23" day of
September, 2016, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voling module shall be disabled by CDSL. for voting

thereafter,
{ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.avolingindia.com.
(iii} Click on Shargholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID
{a) For CDSL: 16 digils beneficiary 1D,
{b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP {D followed by 8 Digits Clienl 1D,

N, (c) Members hokling shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.

9 {v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login, . ..

{vi} If you ars holding shares in demal form and had logged on to www.evgtingindia.com and voled on an earier

- voting of anyzompany, then your existing password is to be used. -

* {vii) If you are a first time user follow the sleps given below: :

. ' - * | For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

. Q

asl

PAN . Enter your 10 digil alpha-numerc "PAN issued by Income Tax Oepartment
-(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical sharehoiders) "
- - |+ e Members who have not updaled lheir PAN with the Company/Depository
Participant are requested lo use the sequence number which is printed on
_ Attendance Slip indicated in tha PAN field.
-.poB  owwee | ENlEr the, Date of Birth_as recorded in_your demat account or in the company
records for the saikd demat account or folio in dd/mmdyyyy format.
Dividend Bank Detalls | Enter the Dividend Bank Detalls as recorded in your demal account of in the |
company racords for tha said demat account o folio.

s Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Delails in order to login. if the

details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter Lhe

» member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details flekd as mentioned in
instruction (tv).

“(vill"After entering'these detalis-appropriatety-click-on"SUBMIT" tab.
{ix) Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
Members holding shares in demat form wilt now reach ‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required 1o

2




h SR oy

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED S T e e E@

mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also
used by the demat holders for voling for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e- -voting through CDSL platform. !l is strongly recommended nol lo share your
password with any other person and lake ulmost care to keep your password confidential.
{x) For Members holding shares in physucal form, the details can be used only for e-voling on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.
{xi) Click ‘on the EVSN for the relevant Company. i.e. Hisar Spinning Mills Limiled on which you choose to vote,
(xii) On the voting page. you will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION® and againsl the same the option *YESINO™
for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution
and oplion NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
(xm) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view Lhe entire Resolution detais.
{xiv) Alter selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™, A confirmation box will be
dlsplayed If you wish to confirm your vote, chck on "OK", eise to change your vote, click on 'CANCEL' and
accordingly modify your vote, :
{xv) Once you “CONFIRM" your vole on lhe resolution, you will not be atlowed to modlfy your vole,
(xvi) You can aiso take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print™ option on the Voting
page. .
{xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password lhen Enter the User 1D and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xwu) Note for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians

»  Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.} and Custodian are required to

log on to www www.evolingindia.com and register lhemselves as Corporates.
« A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

¢ After receiving the login details & compliance user should be created using the admin legin and
password. The Compliance user would be able lo link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

+ The list of accounts should be mailad to helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com and on approval of the
accounts they woukd be able to cast their vote.

.+ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) wh:ch they have issued in favour

" of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the syslem for the scrutinizer lo verily the
-same,

[xut) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions {“FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write
an emall to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. ’
{xx} Since, the Company is required to provide the members facility to exercise their vote by electronic means,
shareholders of the company, holding shares either in physical form or demalerialized form as on the cut off date
i.e. Friday, the 23™ day of September, 2016 and not casting their vote electronically, may also cast their vote al
the Annual General Meeting. . .

{xxi) The members who have casl their vole by e-voling prior to the Annual General meeting, may also attend
ihe meeling but shalt not be entitled to cast their vote again.

{xxii) Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Goel, Company Secretary in practice, has been appomled as the’ Scrunn:zer lo scrutinize
the e-voting process in a fair & transparent manner.

{xxiii} The Scautinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the annual general meeting, first count
the votes cast al the meeting, thereafter, unblock the votes casl through remote e-voting in the presence of
aileasl 2 wilnesses not in employment of the Company and make, nol later than 3 days from the conclusion of
the meeting, a Consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the
Chairman, who shall countersign the same.
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Form no. MGT-11
: - Proxy Form )
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and:
' Administration) Rules, 2014] )

CIN : : L17112HR1992PLC0I1621
Name of the Company : Hisar Spinning Mills Limited :
Registered office : 9™, KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO, Dabra, Hisar
If We, being the member (sjof ................ Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint
i
Name:
Address:
Email ID:
Signature:. ..o e or failing him
Name:
Address:
Email ID:
Signature:........oooo v, , or failing him
Name:
Address: )
Email ID:
Signature:.........coiiiviiiinee e

as my/ our proxy 10 attend and vote {on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behall at the Annual General Meeting
of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 30" day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs. at 9%, KM Stone, Hisar
Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated
below,

S.NO. RESOLUTIONS

1 :Consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, Reports ol the Board of Dircctors and
| Auditors )

2 Re-appointment of Ms. Sapna Kansal, DIN 06892410, retining by rotation

3 Ratification of appointment ol Auditors and fix their remuneration

Signed this™.......... day of September; 2016

Signature of Shareholder:

Signature of Proxy Hoider {s):

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective shou!d be duly compleled and deposited at the registered office
of the Company, not less than 48 hours belore the commencement of the Meeting.
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Registered Office: 9", KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani
Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005 -~
Tel: 01662-260397, TelFex:-91-1662-260397
' . . . E-mait: hsmi2000@rediffmail.com
Website: www hisarspinningmills.com
CIN: L17112HR1992PLC031621

Attendanca Slip for 24™ Annual General Meeting
(to be handed over at the Registration Counter)

l/\We heraby record mylour presence at the 24" Annuat General Meeting of the company al 3™, KM Stone, Hisar
Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar on 30 day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hss,

‘--‘ ' "Signature of the Member/Proxy present
Note: The practice of distributing copies of the Annual Report at the Annual General Meeting has been

L discontinued. Hence, persons attending the Meeting are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report
wilh them.

PLEASE CUT HERE AND BRING THE ABOVE ATTANDACE SLIP AT THE MEETING.

ey

Registered Cffice: 9", KM Stona, Hisar Bhiwani
Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar-125005

Tel: 01662-260397, TelFex:-91-1662-260397
Website: www.hisamspinningmills.com

CIN: L1 71 12ZHR1992PLCD31621

]
)
A Dear Sir,
|~ Pursuant (o provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration)Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Managemenl and Administration}

E" Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Oblgations & Disclosure Requirements)
. Reguiations, 2015, the company is pleased Lo provide remote s-voling lac:lnty to the members to cast their votes
y electronicafly on all the resolutions set forth in the Notice convening the 24" Annual General Mesting 1o be held
l._ on Friday, 30™ day of September, 2016 at 12:00 Hrs. The company has engaged the Central Depository

1: Services Limited {CDSL) to provide the remote e-voting factmy
| Your electronic voting particulars are sel out below:
' ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN N User ID ] Password
{Electronic Voting Event : .
Number}’

’- ' : * 180805004

The remole a-voling facility wlll be avallable dunng the vonng period as mdscale herein below:

Commoncemont of rcmota o-voting perlod _ End of remote e-voting period

From 9.00 A.M. IST on Tuesday. 2 Seplember, 2016 | Till 5.00 P.M. IST on Thursday, 29" September, 2016

5




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED %@

Notes:

1. Please read the instructions prinied' overleal before exercising your vote.

2. These details and instruclions form an integral part of the Nouce for the 24™ Annual General Meeting to be
held on 30™ day of September, 2016.

3. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to the paid up value of their shares in he equily share

capital of the Company as on cul-off dale of Tuesday. 23 September, 2016, being the record date for the
purpose of voting. :




J, "the Company.
)
- SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
FIXED DEPOSITS
the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules mada thereunder,
f_

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Director's Report

Dear Shareholdars,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 24® Annual Report togather with the Audited Slatement of
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016,

Financial Highlights . Year ended | Year ended
' . 31.3.2016 31.3.2015
. (Rs. in lacs) . (Rs. in lacs)

Sales & other incoma 2399.28 2404.79
Profil before Interast & Depreciation 346.72 265.88
Less : Interest 46.83 28.31
Profit{Loss} before Depraciation 299.89 237.57
Less : Depreciation. 230.63 134.53
Profit before exceptional items and before Tax 69.26 103.04
Add: Exceptional ltems ) 17.60 -
Profit! (Loss) bafore Tax 86.86 : 103.04
Less : Provision for Taxation - Current Tax 17.14 46.08

- MAT Credit ' - ‘ -
-Detferred Tax Liability/{Assets) 10.19 (21.89)
-MAT Credit earliar year - ’ -

-Tax for earlier years - - -

Net Profitf (Loss) safter Tax 'J 58.53 . 78.87
Add : Surplus broughl from previous year 178.91 100.04
Total Surplus 238.44 178.91
Appropriations : | ‘
Proposed Dividend = - ' , NIL NIL
Corporate Dividand Tax ) NIL d NIL
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet 23844 - 178.91

' 238.44 178.81

OPERATIONAL & PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the year under review, the gross receipts of your Company were Rs. 2399.28 lacs.as against gross

receipts of Rs. 2404.79 lacs during the previous year showing a minor decrease in tolal receipts and profit (after :
tax) was Rs. 5853 lacs for the year as against net profit (after tax} of Rs.78.87 lacs during previous year showing

a decline of 24,52%. The Company has made a major lechnological up gradation of machines in the last financial

year and its benefits shall accrue in the years to come. The directors are optimislic about future performance of

During'the year ended 31* March, 2016, the Company did not have any subsidiary company.

The Company has not acoepled or renewed any deposit from the publuc during the year under review pursuant to

7
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With a view lo consarve resources of lha company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year
under review.

APPOINTMENT OF KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS (KMPs) AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to provisions of section 152 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and .
Qualificatiop of Directors) Rules, Mrs. Sapna,Kensal, DIN 06892410 shali retire by rotation and being eligible,

offer hersell for ra-appointment Mr. T N Gosl, DIN 00193103 and Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193052, were
appointed as Independent Direclors for a peniod of five consecutive years in the Annual General Mesting
held on 29" September 2015 in terms of provisions of section 148, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other

applicable prowsuons of Companies Acl 2013 & Companies (Appointment and Quahfcauon of Directors)
Rules 2014.

As on 31® March 2016, following ara Key Managerial Personnel of Company:
+ Mr, Gopal Krishan Gupia Managing Director '

» Mr. Anurag Gupta Executive Director
e Shri Sharad Goel Chief Financial Officer
= Mrs, Tanu Sharma - Company Secretary

In accordance with the provisions of thé Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the Company Mrs.
Sapns Kansal, DIN 06892410 shall retire by rotation at the:forthcoming Annual General Meating and is eligible for
re-appoiniment,

Mr. Rajesh Gupta, DIN 00193103, ceased to be the director of the company consequent upon his sudden & -
untimely death on 04" July, 2016. Your directors applauded contribution made by him during his association with
the company. Your directors axpressed their sympathy for the bereaved family and wished peace for the

departed soul.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

At the 23™ Annual General Meeting of Company held on 29™ September 2015, M/s Jain & Anil Sood,

Chartered Accountants, were fe-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a period_of two years
i.e. from the conclusion of 23™ Annual General Meeling of Company till the conclusion of 257 Annuat
General Meeting of Company; subject to the ratification of their appointment by the members in

subsequent Annual General Meeting in accordance with lhe provisions of.section 139 of Companies Act
2013 read wilh Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014.

In pursuance to the sama, the Company has obtained a Letter of Eligibility in terms of provisions of section
139 of Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules 2014 from M/s Jain & Anil Seod,
Charered Accountants, to the effect that their re-appointment, if ratified tn the ensuing AGM would be in
accordance with the provisions of section 141 of Companies Act 2013 and rules made there under and that
thay are not disqualified for such appointment under Companies Act, 2013, the Chariered Accountants Act
1949 and rules & regulzlions made there under, Acoordnngly, the appointment 6f M/s Jain & Anil Sood,
Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company, is placed for ratification by the shareholders
The said appointment has also been approved by Audit Commitiee.

AUDITOR'S REPCRT

Observations, if any, made in the Auditor's Report are self explanatory and do not call any explanation.
- W} . . .
A .

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Mr. Sanjiv Kumar Gosl, Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed by the Board to conduct Sacretarial
Audit under provisions of section 204 of the Companies Acl 2013, The Secretarial Audit repon is annexed with

8
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the Director's Report as Annexure — 1. There is|no qualifl;::éltion in secretarial audit report. )

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION "FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO

Energy conservation continues 1o be’ an area of major emphasis in your Company Efforts are made to opumlze‘ e
the enargy cost while carrying out manufacturing operations. As required by the provisions of section 134 of the - |
Companies Act, 2013, the relevant information regarding Conservalion of Energy, Technology Absorpbon and i
Foreign Exd\ange Eamings and Outgo is given in the Annexurs- 2 forming part of lhls repon. .

( STATUTORY DISCLOSURES Ao Gy
None of the Dlrectors of the Company are disqualified under the provisions of secticn 164 of the Compphles Ac1
3 2013. The Directors have made the requisite disciosures, as required under the Companies Act 2013 ‘and’ SEBI .
- (Listing Obligations ‘and Disclosure Raqu:remenls) Regulauons 2015 ("hereinafter referred to as Listing ~ *-
] Regulations”). ’

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE _ -

F The Company is committed to maintain the good standards of Corporate Govemance. The Company has

complied with the Corporate Governance requirements as stipulated under Listing Regutations. Pursuant to
said Regulations, Report on Corporate Govemance together with the Certificate issued by Practicing . -
Company Secretary regarding compliance of Corporate Governance is annexed to this repor.

i DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)c¢) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that:

(a) in the preparation of annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2016, the apphcable
. accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made'
Judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
slate of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2016 and of the profit of the Company for the year
ended on that date;

(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting reoords
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitias; y

(d) the annuat eccounts have been prepared on a going concem basis;, . .

(e) the Directors have laid down inlemal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such ’
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively. .

{f} the Directors have devised propar systems to ensure compliance with (he provisions of all apphcable
laws and thal such systems are adequately and cperating effectively.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of extract of the Annual Return is given In Form MGT-9 in Annexure - 3.

) NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS .
‘During the linancial | year 2015-16, six Board meetings were held The meetings were helcl on 15% April, 2015,

. 30™ Mmay, 2015, 13" August, 2015, pa* September, 2015, 13" November, 2015 and 15" February, 2016. The,

: other relevant details of Board meelings and the atlendance of the Directors elc. is given under Corporate

J _ Governance Report annexed with Director’s Report.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT. DIRECTORS

. All Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the Declaration of independence, as required pursuanl -,
] lo section 149(7)of the Companies Act 2013 and under Lisling Regulations, stating thal they meet the criteria of
indepeqdenoe as provided in sub-section (6).

! | | o 9‘_ - . .




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ’ @@
PARTICULARS OF LOAN, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNGER SECTION 186 o :

No loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been given by the
Company. : T ,

RELATED PARTY TRANSCATIONS - ) S e

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business ang were.al aom's length_basis.. No.Materally, significant retated, party.transactions.have been entered.
by the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. that had potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Commitiee as also
the Board for approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is oblained on yearly basis for the
transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitiva nature. The detail of transactions entered into pursuant to the
omnibus approval so granted is placed before the Audit Committee ‘and the Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis. Nona of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the company., ’

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of Tha Saxual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, & Redressal) Act, 2013. Intemal Complaints,
Committee {IiCC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees

{(parmanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered.under. this policy. . The said policy is uploaded on the
Company's wabsite www.hisarspinningmills.com. v

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the year 201516

a) No. of complaints received: Nil
b No. of complaints disposed off; Nil

MATERIAL CHANGES FROM END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL DATE OF REPORT

There are no materal changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of ihe Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial slalements relate and the

date_of lhe report.other than those disclosed in the financial statene " .
- .—.-;;:E;—:a-‘.‘ PRI —m—ms_ — —T ﬁ-:‘-g
_——as‘!?;_, $

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk management is a continuous process across the organization designed to identify, assess and frame a
response o threals Lhat affect the achievement of its objeclives. It enablés management to prepare for risks
befora they_devolve to_improve the operational effecliveness. Datermination_of_the risk appetite allows
management-ic deploy résources ‘accordingt"the need. The Company fimty DeTaves that to ensure effective
risk management, ihere oughl to be risk management plans to hendle the risks based on the priorities and
challenges of the business. The factors involved in identified risks must be considered and the accuracy of
assessment is very important. This implies, if proper risk management is implemented as a best praclice then
massive capita! losses can. be pravented. The success of the Risk Management Framework depends on tha

—..efforts.takendo .mitigatm‘.roduco.either..ma.pmbability..or.cormaquanca.of.the Jiski.threaw. 1herefore. considering.
the same, Company's Risk Management Policy includes three key elements: Lo .

- ata - -

I, Risk Assessment
IIl. Risk Managemenl and Risk Mitigation
Il Risk Monitoring

Risks are analyzed, considering likelihood snd impact, as a basis for determining how they should be managed
effectively. Adhering the same, Company has constituted Risk Management Committee and adopted an effective -
Risk Management Policy in its place to assess,-miligate and.lo monitor the different risks.exposed.to the industry
in which it operates. Risk management policy of the company is available at company’s website
www.hisarspinningmills.com. ot
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POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION AND OTHER PRESCRIBED MATTERS

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the
terms of reference as sel out under provisions of Clause 49 of Listing Agreement read with provisions of Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made lhereunder. Apart from other Corporate Polices which are
mandatory under Companiaes Act as well as under Lisling Agreement, the said Committee bas also formulated
and recommaended to the Board a Nomination & Remuneration Policy relaling lo director's appointment and
, remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive altributes, independence of a director and
all other matiers as stipulated under the provisions of section 178 of Companies Act 2013.

‘The palicy also relates to remuneration of Director's, KMP's and other employees of the Company. The said
policy is given in Annexure-4.

\ INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND ITS ADEQUACY

] Your Company maintains an adequate and effective Interal Control system commensurate with its size and
e complexity. Internal control systems provide, among other things, a reasonable assurance that iransactions are
executed with Managemenl authorization and that they are recorded in all material respects to permit preparation
of financial statements in conformity with established accounting principles and that the assets of your Company
are adequately safeguarded against significant misuse or loss. ;
‘. During the year under review, the Company continued lo implement their suggestions and recommendations to
f improve the internal financial control environment. Their scope of work inter-alia includes review of operational
i efficiency, effectiveness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. In
addition lo statutory audit, the financial controls of the Company al various locations are reviewed by the Intemnal
3 Auditors, who report their findings Lo the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee aclively reviews tho
E adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and suggests further strengthening the sama, wheraver
A required.

] -~ DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year under review, there is no material order(s) passed by the regulators or courts or lribunal
-impacting the going concern status and company's operation in future.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING COMPANIES {SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURE) RULES 2014

The paid up listed equity share capital of the Company as at 31* March 2016 was Rs. 3.73.50,000/- compriging
of 37,35.000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, As required under Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules
2014, during the year under review, the Company has not issued equily shares with differential voting rights,
‘'sweat aquily shares, preference shares and employee stock options and also nol made any provision for
purchasa of its own shares by employees or by trustees.

NP CiCS ey

DISCLOSURE REGARDING VOTING RIGHT NOT EXERCISED DIRECTLY BY THE EMPLOYEES

‘.'. Curing the year under review, there is NIL disclosure as required under provisions of section 67(3) of Companies
: Act 2013,

AUDIT COMMITTEE )

. Audit Commitiee constituted by the Company functions in accordance with the terms of referenca as set out
b - under:the.provisions of Clause 49 of Lisling Agreement read with provisions of Section 177 of Companies Act,
© «20M13 & rules made thereunder and additional responsibilities assigned to 'it by Board of Directors of the
Company, The Committee reviews the internal.sudil reports and findings of intarnal auditors along with the
comments of management. The functions of the Audit Committée among others include approving and
implementing the audit procedures, eflective supervision of financial reporting system, Whistlea Blower
Mechanism, inlernal control and procedures, recommending appointiment of Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to
. Board and also ensuring compliances mth regulatory guidetines. The Board has constituled the Audit Commlltae
. ' oomprises of {ollowing: .

LY

-

S.NO. NAME ' DESIGNATION

K 1 Sh. Rajesh Kumar Gupla Non-exacutive and Independem Director Chairman
2 - Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director Member
3 Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-execulive and Independent Director Member
' 1

=
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The other relevant details of Audit Committee are’ given under Corporate Governance Report annexed with
Director's Report. .

VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has a vigil mechanism named “Whisile Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism™ 1o deal with instance of
fraud ard mismanagement. il any. The detail of the Policy is explained in the Corporate Governanca Report and
also available at company's website www.hisarspinningmills.com.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS . o )

During the year under review, the Board adapted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well -
as that of iis committees. individual Direclors, including the Chairman of the Board in compliance with the
Companies Act 2013 and Listing Regulations. The exercise was carriad out through a structured evaluation
process covering various aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board, its commiltee &
members, their experience & compelencies, performance of specific duties & obligations, govemance and also in
accordance with Performance Evaluation Policy of Company. Breadly the performance of Non-
independent/Executive/Whole Time Director(s) was evaluated on the basis of their own perormance, expertise,
intelligance, lheir qualitative & gquantitalive contribution lowards operational achievements, organizational
parformance etc. The performance of Non-Exacutive independent Directors were evaluated on the basis of their
construclive participations in Board/Committee/General meetings, their informed & balanced decision-making,
ability to monitor financial controls & systems, & certain allied parameters. The performance evaluation of various
Board Commiltees constituted under Companies Act & Listing Agreement was made on the basis of their
raspective terms of reference, discharge of functions, govemancs efc. '

Disclosure of information’s as required under rule 5(1) of Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014

The Provisions of Rule 5(2) & {3} of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014 requiring particutars of the employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs per year to
be disclosed in the Report of Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company as none of the employees
was in receipt of remuneration in excess of Rs. 60 lacs during the financial year 2015-186.

-+

Disclosures periaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies
Act. 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Parsonnel)
Rules. 2014 are provided in the Annexure forming part of the Annual Reporl. Having regard to the provisions of
Section 136(1) read with its relevanl proviso of the Companies Act. 2013, the Annual Report excluding the
aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for
inspection al the Registered Office of the Company during working -hours and any member interesled in
obtaining such information may write lo the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished free of cost.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Corﬁpany has ‘affirmed that the remuneration is as per the
rermunaration policy of the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

Management discussion and analysis repon, as required by Listing Regulations, forms part of the Annual
Report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT . - :
Your Direclors:wish to convey their appreciation-to«all-of the-Cempany’s employees for their enormous effonis as
well as their collective contribution to the Company's perfonmiance. The*Directors would also like to thank
shareholders, customers, dealers, suppliers, Financial. institutions, bankers, Government and all the other
business associates for the continuous support given by them to the Company and their confidance in its
managemaent, : ) ' _ : : '

By order of the Board of Birectors

t
: Sdi- : - Sdi-
Ptace: Chandigarh (Anurag Gupta) {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 Executive Director Managing Director
DIN-00192888 DIN-00192985
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Gorporate Governance Report

1. Company's philosophy on code of Governance o
Corporate Govemance is a sat of system, process and principles which ensure that a Company is governed in
the bast interast of all stakeholders. The objective -of Good Corporate Govemance is to ensure the Board's
commitment towards transparent management to maximize long lerm value for the Company's shareholders of
all stakehoiders. We believe that good Corporate Govemnance emerges from the application of the best and
sound management practices and compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to the highést standards of
transparency and busineas ethics. .

<. Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of your Company has an oplimem combination of Execulive and Non-Executive Directors
50 as lo have a balanced structure. As on 31™ March 2018, the Board of Directors consists of six Directors, out of
which two ere Promoter Directors {(Managing Director and executive Director}, one Non - Exacutive Woman
Director and three sre Independent Non-Executive Directors. None of the Directors on the board is a member on
more than 10 committees and Chairman of more than 5 committees as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“hereinafter referred to as Listing Reguiations™), across all the
companies in which they are Directors. The necessary disclosures regarding committee mamberships have been
made by all the Directors. The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill.the conditions of independence
specified in Section 149 of Companies Act 2013 and rules made thera under and meet with requirements of
Listing Regulations.

During the financial year 2015-16, six Board meetings were held. The meetings were held on 15™ April, 2015,
-30™ May, 2015, 13" August, 2015, 04" September, 2015, 13" November,~2015 and 15" February, 2016. As
stipulated by Code of Independent Directors under Companies Act 2013 and under Listing Regulations, a
separate meeting of independent directors was held on 157 February, 2018 to review the pedormance of Non-
Independent direclors including the Chairman and the Boards as a whole. The Independent Direclors also
reviewsd the quality. conlent and timeliness of follow of infarmation between Management and the Board, All
independent Directors wera prasent in the said meating.

The names and calegories of Directors on the board, their attendance at Board Meelings during the year and al
the last Annual General Meeting, as also the number of Directorships/ Committee memberships/ Chairmanship
held by them in olher Companies ara given below:

<

No. of Directorship and Committee Membership/Chairmanship as on 31.03.2016:-
Nama of .Director | Category Attendance . No.of | No. of Membership/ Chairmanship in

- » Particulars Directorshi Committeas +
o p

Board |Last AGM Other  |Membershi |Chairmanship| Total
Meeting Directorshi p
p -
Sh. Gopal Krishan MD 5 Yes 1 1 Nil 1
Gupta )
Sh. TN Goel INED 5 Yas 4 Nil Nil Nil
Smit. Sapna NED 5 Yas Nil Nil 1 1
Kansal* .
Sh. Anurag Gupta ED 5 Yaos TNl 1 * Nil
. | Sh. Vikas Gupta INED 5 No ~n Nl . 2 . Nil 2

Sh, RajeshGupta | INED .| 5 Yes - Nil Nl - R

INED : Indepandent Non Executive Director
NED : Non Executive Director o

MD : Managing Director (Executive)

ED :Executive Direclor
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+ :The commiitees consadered for the above purpose are Audit Committee and Stakehoiders Relauonshtp
Committee. . .

3 INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access l?all Information about the Company. All the meetings are conducted as per well
designed and structured agenda. Al the agenda items are backed by necessary supporting information including
minimur information as stipulated under Regulation 17(7) of Listing Regulations 1o the extent il is applicable &
relevant and documents to enable the Board to lake informed decisions. Agenda also includes minutes of the
meatings of 81 (he” BE3Td COMMINEEY for the RIGAMATION o Board. THE BEATd Taviews the J8CIAraUons/fapons”
made by the Management regarding compliance with applicable laws on quarterty basis as well as steps taken by

the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any. Post meetings, all important decisions taken at the f
meeling are communicated to the concerned officials and departments.

4, MAXIMUM DIRECTORSHIP & TENURE OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' ‘ -

The maximum tenure of Indepandent Direclors is in compliance with the Companies Act 2013. The Company has - -
issued formal letters of appointment to all the Independent Directors. At the time of appointment of an
independent director, it was ensured that the number of Boards on which such independent direcior serves is -
restricted 10 seven listed companies as an independent director and three listed companies as an independent

direclor in casa such person is serving as a whola-time (executive) direcior of a listed company. The terms &
conditions of appointment of indepandent directors are available on Company's websiie viz.

www.hisarspinningmills.com. 3

5. Code of Conduct

The Company is committed (0 conduct its business in accordance with 'the pertinenl laws, rules and regulations
and with the highest standards of business athics. The Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on Company's wabsite viz.
www.hisarspinningmills.com, All Board members and Saenior Managemen Personnel have sffirmed compliance

© with the Code. A declaration signed by Sh, Gopal Krishan Gupta, DIN 00192985, Managing Director of the
Company lo this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

6. PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING CODE

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, the Company has adopled a Code of Conduct.for
Prevention of Insider Trading. The Code is applicable to Promoters and Promoler's Group, all Direclors, KMP's
and such Designated Employaes etc. who ars expeclted to have access lo unpublished price sensilive y
information refating to Company. The Code lays down guidelines advising them on procedures Lo be followed and o Y
disclosures to be made while dealing with the shares.of Company and cautioning them about the consequences
of violations. The Company Sacretary is responsible for implementation of this code. During the year under
review, there has been due compliance with {he said code. The Company has also formulated a Code of -
Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information in accordance with SEBI {
{Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The same is also posted on Company's website
viz. www. hisarspinningmills.com. )

;.':’)
7. CEQ and CFO Caertification -

As per Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, Sh, Sharad Goel, Chief Financial Officer (CFO)} & Sh. Gopal Krishan
Gupta, DIN 00192985, Managing Director (CEO) of the Company have issued. cerlificate pursuant to the
provisions of Listing Regulations certifying that the financial statements and the cash flow statement do nol
contain any malenally unirue stalement and these statements represent a true and [air view of the Company's
af{airs. The said cerificate is attached herewith and forms part of the Annual Report. -

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

-.The.Board.of.Diractors have constituted various. Board Committees in compliance of Companies Act as well as.
Listing Regulations/Listing Agreement lo deal with specific areas and activilies as slpulated under the.
Companigs Act and Lisling Obligations. The Board Committees meet at regular inlervals, takes necessary steps |
to perform its duties/lunctions entrusied by the Board. ’
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(A) Audit Committes

Audit Committee functions in accordance wilh the terms of reference as sel out under Listing Regulations read
with provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there under and additional
" responsibiliies assigned lo it by Board of Directors of the Company. The Committee reviews the internal audit
reports and findings of intemnal auditors along with the comments of management. The funclions of the Audit
Committee among others, include approving and implementing the audit procedures, effaclive supervision of
financial reporting system, Whistie Blower Mechanism, internal control and procedures, recommending
appointment of Slalutory Auditors, Cost Auditors to Board and also ensuring compliances with regulatory
guidelines. Tha composition, names of members, chairperson, particutars of the meetings and attendance of the
members during the financial year are as below:

During the financial year 2015-16, Four Audit Committee meetings were heid on May 30, 2015, August 13, 2015,
November 13, 2015 and February 15, 2016. ’

S.NO. | NAME DESIGNATION NO. OF
) ) MEETINGS
ATTENDED
DURING THE
YEAR 2015-
. . 2016
1 Sh, Rajesh Kumar Gupta, Non-gxecutive and Independent | Chairman 4
Director '
2 Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director Member 4
3 Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-executiva and Indapendent Director Member E 4

The Managing Director éiong with the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Internal Auditors were invitees to the
meelings. The Company Secrelary acts as secretary to the Audit Commitiee.

~

(B). Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions in accordance with the terms of reference as set out
under Listing Regtations read with provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 & rules made there under.
The functions of Nomination and Remuneration Committee include formulation of criteria for determining
qualifications, posilive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a
policy relating to remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, formutation of
criteria for evatuation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors, devising a policy on
diversity of board of directors, identifying persons who are qualified 10 become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with criteria laid down and recommend o the board of directors
th{-eir appointment and removal etc. During the financial year 2015-2016, one meeting of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee was held on May 30, 2015 . :

S.NO. | NAME DESIGNATION | NO. OF MEETINGS
ATTENDED DURING
THE YEAR 2015-2016

1 Sh. T N Goel, Non-exacutive and Independent |.Chairman 1
Director

2 Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-executive end Independent | Membar 1
Director  ~

3 Ms. Sapna Kansal, Non-axaecutive Director Member 1

Remuneration Policy

The objective of this Policy is directed lowards having a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward
and retain talent. The Company has adopted and implemented the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies
Act, 2013 on the requiremani of the Committee to recommend to the Board a policy, relating lo the remuneration
for the directors, KMPs and olher employees.

15
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i) Remuneration of Non-Executive Diractors
No remuneration was paid to the Non-Executive Directors during the .yéar 201516,

i} Remunseration of Executive Directors

The details of remuneration paid io the Exscutive Diractors during the year 2015-16 are-given balow:

{InRs.}
[Name of Directors .o |. -.Salaty, > |- Porquisites’ - Commission - {2 ot <o Totale ' ]|
Sh. Anurag Gupla;| 360000 - - . -~ 360000
Director ] - o

There is no Employee Stock Option Schemae (ESOP) in the Company as on 11* March 2016. Further, thers are’
no pecuniary relationships or transactions of Non-Executive Diractor vis-a vis the Company which has potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large, .

(C). Stakehclders Relationship Committes

The Stakehoiders Relationship Committee functions in accordance with the terms of raference as set out under
provisions of Listing Regulations read with provisions of Saction 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 & rules made
thareunder i.e. redressing of Shareholders/Investors complaints, regarding to shara transfers, non-recsipt of
balance- sheet/dividend-~ by- tha- shareholders etc. During the financial year 2015-18, four Stakehoiders -
Relationship Committee meetings were held on May 30, 2015, August 13, 2015, November: 13, 2015and
February 15, 2016, The composition, names of the members, chairperson, particulars of the meetings and
attendance of the members during the year are as balow: -

$.NO[2 | NAME OF MEMBERS DESIGNATION . NO. OF MEETINGS ATTENDED |,
. DURING THE YEAR 2015-2016 |-
Mrs. Sapna Kansal, Non Executive|Chalrman 4
1 Director ) -

2 Sh. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director Member

Sh. Vikas Gupta, Non-axecutive and|Member
3 Independant Director

Ouring the financial year, the request for transfer/demat/remat of shares, change of address etc have been duly
eflécted. During the year, no complaint from any shareholder. was received. Hence no grievance was pending at
- the.end of the .financial. year._Ms. Tanu Shamma is the Compllance Officer of the Company for SEBV Stock
Exchange/ROC related issues elc, .

(D). Risk Management Committee:

The Risk Managemeni Commilttee was discontinued during the year as Listing Regulations in this respect are not
applicabie to the company. ’

9. Generali-Body Mestings -

The last three Annual General Mestings of the Company wara held as under -

YEAR _ VENUE . DATE | TMME DETAILS OF SPECIAL
: RESOLUTION
2012-13 9™ KM Stone; Hisar Bhiwani road,| 30/09/2013 | 11.00AM. TNl
_ |V.P.O Dabra (Hisar) , .
2013-14 9" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani-road;|--29/00/2014 | 11.00AM. -Ni}
V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)
2014-15 g™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road,| 29/09/2015 | 11.00AM. Nil

16
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YEAR : VENUE _ DATE TIME DETAILS OF SPECIAL
‘ . RESOLUTION

V.P.O Dabra (Hisar)

No Postal ballots were used for voting in these meetings. At the forthcoming AGM, there is no item on the agenda

. that needs approval by Postal ballots,

10. Subsidlary Company

. 2
Ouring the year ended 31™ March, 2018. neither the Company has any subsidiary nor any material listad/unlisted
subsidiary company. ’

11. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
The Company's Risk Management Policy is available at company’s website www.hisarspinningmills.com.

12. Disclosures

a) Related Party Transactions

All related party transactions of the Company are dealt with in accordance with Related Party Transactions Policy
of Company and as per provisions of section 188 of Companies Acl 2013 & rules made there undar and as per
Listing Regulations. All Related Party Transactions are presented (o the Audit Committee and the Board for
approval by specifying the nature, value, tesms and conditions of the transactions etc., Omnibus approval is
obf2lained for the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. A statement of ali reiated party
transactions for which omnibus approval has obtained are presented before the Audit Committee as well as to
Board on quarterly basis. Although all related party transactions are entered in ordinary course of business and at
arm's length basis. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with its
promolers, Directors or Key Managerial Persannet, their relatives etc. thal may have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large. : :

Suitable disclosures as required by the Accounting Standards (AS 18) are disclosed in Notes to Accounts in the
Annual Report. The Related Party Transaclions Policy of Company available on the Companys wabsite:
www.hisarspinningmills.com.

b) Disclosure of unting Treatment in tion of Financial Statemen
The Company has followed all relevant Accounting Standards referred 1o in Section 133 of Companies Act 2013

& rules made there under and laid down by inslitute of Chartared Accountants of India, while preparing Financial
Statemants, - - '

Curing the lasl three years, there were no strictures or penallies imposed by either SEBI or the Stock Exchanges
or any Statutory Authority for non-compliance of any matier related to the capital markets.

d} Whigtle Blower Palicy/Vigil Mechanism

The Company has adopled Whistie Blower Policy and has established the necessary mechanism for employees
to report concems about unethical behavior. This policy is reviewed quarterly by the Audit Commitiee 1o check
the affectiveness of the policy & relaled matters. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Commitiee.
The relevani details of Whistle Blower Policy are given under the Directar's Report and same is available on the
Company's websile: www.hisarspinningmills.com. e R

2e) Details of compliance with mandatory reguirements end adoption of the non-mandatary reguirements
_1-9‘

The Company has complied with all applicable mandatory requireaments. The Company has not adoﬂpted non-
mandatory requirements.
’ 17
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1) Subsigiary Company

it .
During the year ended 31% March, 2016, neither the Company has any subsidiary nor ariy material listed/unlisted
. subsidiary company, ) . . )

g) Independent Diregtor's Declarations

All Independent Directors have confirmed that Lhey meet the criteria of ‘Independence’ as stipulated under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regutations. ‘ ‘ -

Sanior Management and Key Managerial Personne have made disclosure to the Board relating to all material,

financial and other transactions stating that they did not have any personal interest thal could rasult in a conflict; .
with the intarast of the Company al large. The material, financial and commercial transactions where Keay
Managerial Personnel have personal interest forms part of the disclosure on retated parties refermed to in Notes to T
Annual Accounts, . )

13. Parformance evaluation of Board of Directors

.During the year, the Board adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and effectiveness as well’
as that of its Committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board. For Board and its

Committees, the exercise was carried oul through a structured evalualion process covering various aspects of’
the Boards functioning such’ as composition of the Board & commitipes, experience & competencies, .
performance of spécific duties & obligations, governance issuas elc. The Performance evatuation of Non--:
Independent directors inciuding the Chairman was. carried out by independent Directors in their separate '
meeling. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement and

affectiveness of the ‘Board and its Commiltees. The necessary details regarding criteria of performance ’

evaluation is' mentioned under Direclor's Report. The Performance Evaluation Policy of Board of Directors is
available.on Company's. website viz. www.hisarspinningmilts.com. , 1

.14, Famlllarisation Programmefinduction for Independant Directors '

At the Board Meetings. apart from the regular agenda items, it is ensured that the Board members are provided 8.,
s deep and thorough insight into the business model of the Company and updates either by way of prasentation of

business units or otherwise. The Board members get an open forum for discussion and share their experienca. Al -
the time-of appeinting an independent Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to him/her, which inter alia .
explains-the-role; function: duties;responsibiiities expected of himMer as a Director of the Company and | -
‘expected time commitments. As required under Listing Regulations, Company has conducted a familiarizations |
programme for its indepandent directors under which the necessary information was provided to tamiliarize them: 4
with the nature, activities, products of the Company and also about their roles, rights, responsibilities in the

. Company. T

15. Board Diversity Policy

PR YR
k)

The Nomination and Remuneralion Committee have formulated ‘Board Diversity Policy in accordance with the: «
.Liaﬁng-Regu!aﬁom-Undor—lho..said.policy.&is.recognized-thaf;a.-Board-oomposed.of-'a'pompriamly-qualiﬂodl'—-'

- pacple with broad range of exparience relevant to the business of the Company is imporant to achieve effective
corporate govemance and sustained commercial success of the Company. In order to ensure that the Company's -
‘boardroom has appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspeciives that are imperative for the
execution of its business stralegy, the Company shall while selecting the Board Members consider a number of
lactors; including but not. limited to age, culture, functional skills, industry/professicnal experience, financial "
literate and integrity etc..Tha uftimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selecled! R
candidates wilt bring to the Board, . T '

18: Means of Communications - ' g

The d{:arlérl?. half yearly & annual financial results, notices etc. are published in widely circulating national &
_ locsl dailies newspaper The Statesman / The Pioneer in English editions and Vyapar Bharti in Hindi Edition. The

18
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same are also being posted on the website of BSE www.bseindia.corn under Scrip Code 521068 and -also on the
wabsite of the company. The Management Discussion and Analysis report forms a part of this Annual Report,

A S Pk

18. General Shareholder informations

Annual General Meeting at 12:00 HRS. on 30" day of Seplember 2016 al Registered Office of tha Company at

9" KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani road, V.P.O Dabra (Hisar). e pent

Financial Calendar - 15t April to 31* March I

Date of Book Closure . : 26.08. 2016 to 30.09.2016

{both days inclusive)

Dividend Paymenl Date TNLAL N

Listing on Stock Exchange : Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)

Scrip Code 1 521068

Corporate Identily Number (CIN} :E1T112HR1892PLC03 1621 : . o

CDSL ISIN No, : INEGBYED1014 -,
T S

Annual listing fee for the year 2016-2017 -has duly been paid to Bombay Stock Exchange{BSE). M. e

IR LA

Market price data - High and Low during each month on BSE in the financial year 201 5-16. Stock code -
521068 (Source: www.bseindia.com)

Months High | Low Closed Shares
April, 2015 5.85 5.54 5.54 900 R
May, 2015 6.72 5.27 ' 6.72 1100 S
June, 2015 6.66 6.05 6.05 1300 A T
July, 2015 _ _ - .- o _TJ
August, 2015 5.75 5.47 5.47 300 1
September, 2015 - - - - R B
October, 2015 - - - - ; L '.'}l
November, 2015 - 5.74 574 574 - 100 BN
December, 2015 - B3 548 6.31 : 3100 .
January, 2016 8.20 6.62 8.20 1300 o
February, 2016 9.04 8.46 8.90 2500 i L |em
March, 2016 8.88 7.62 7.62 1800 .\ oy L |
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s Indus Portfolic Private limited S
G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-110015 mhoke SRt
f!r\/i AT A3

Share Transfer System : Shares lodged in physical form with the RTA dlreétly
. or through Company, are processed and returnad 1+ 4 WAL AT,
duly transferred, within fiteen days normally, except

in cases which are under objacuon. N T N PN TS

oo A L . In respect of shares held i in dematerialised mode*athem“1 (alteen
R ';_}"Ir T ?transfer takes, place instantaneously between the”
Sl R Aransteror, transferee and the Depository. Participant

b L g’ ;' ¢ ;li'lro?gh e!ectromc debiticredit of the ‘Accounts involved®
‘ 10 1, )

LNl iyg Tapu Sharma Company Sacrelary.

‘.i‘?EJE‘\S.-J*'-'{ ;r‘ Nenla

it :-r.:?ﬁtbA

Compliance Officer

E-mail ID's ) . Lot ”"hsmTZOOO@rgdlmnml com . 20 iar3-3
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Distribution of shareholding as on 31 March, 2016. '
Ranga of Shares No. of % of Shareholders | No.ofShares: | % of Shareholding
“ams i |-=Sharehoiders | — ce et U -
0-500 10115 '07.55 1468130 | 38.31 N
501-1000 141 138 112500 | 3.01 |
+{1001-5000 - 73 eien068en e free143100. . . w383, | ,
*15001-10000 10 ©o0d0- 75300 || 12.02 : 1
"[10001-20000 9 0.09 145400 | 389 :
20001-30000 6 0.06 151180 | 4,05 |- -
30001-40000 0 0.00 o 0 ,
40001-50000 . 3 0.03 134500 3.60 ! 1
50001-100000 7 0.07 460200 12.32 . 1
Above 100000 7 0.07 1044680 2797 ," )
' . 10369 100 3735000 100 -
Shareholding Patter as on-31* March, 2016, ’ I
*#
Category’ + [No. of shares _ ' |Percentige L.
Promoters/Promoter Group 1864370 148.92 |
FrsfFirs/ Banks/ Mutual Funds . - !
Indian Public 1787230 |47.85 1
Others 83400 223 |
Shares held by Custodian & against which]- - |
Deposilory Receipts have been issued |
Yotatl .. ‘{3r3soc0 - 100 - .
Details of shareholding-of &redom in the Company.as on'31:03.2018. _ ’
Name of Director 1 , ..|No.ofshares’hald
GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA 115000
ANURAG GUPTA 184250
|SAPNAKANSAL 83100 _
TRILOKI NATH GOEL v 400 ' : {
~ Dematerialisation of shares 2175070 (58.23%) shares
Plant{s) Location " 9" K.M. stone, Hisar Bruw;:'uRoad e l
‘ ' G V.P.O.:Dabra (Hisar) 125005+~ ' " ¥+ 35" - ‘
Addrass for comespondance : ~  Hisar Spinning Mitté limmited - ¢ I -
SR ' g™ K:M. stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,” 1.7 ~ ' ’
. V.P.O:Dabra (Hisar)125005 o TR : :
| Ph.01662:260397° Fax:91: _1592~250397_ ‘,z 4
E-mail ID's : m‘zm@m'm" Com e Ca M3l '
20057 el i iy
: ...,,____\ T L T RN L
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HISARSPINNING MILLS LIMITED= T~ T ="~ S __“:_“__._J__,_,
o R ATV AN EeTs WG, 7A 1 Bylorder of the, Board of Directorsi TAROSLC )
BT ASTAINSIR EIWANAAIL ) By _nUIOUGE0 GAA L MOITADLID
Sutia f e M gD et 10 Sdlemrtt T Sdi-

Place: Chandigarh (Anurag Gupta} {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 - ' -, | .« .+ Executive Director. ... ,Managing Director .. iz .
T T A P DIN-00192888 . ... DIN-00192985 :vi) -."»

o RN PR N T 0 X ol e P

'DECLARATION ON CODE dF CONDﬁCT
- taos - ;‘.--)- a-t

LI | _'r-1_..'

As pro\}idad under SEBI {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirernénts) Regulations 2015,"it is heraby..

* declared that all Board Members and Senior Managmenl Personnel have affirmed compliance with the:Code ¢f 2

Conduct as adopted by the Company for the year ended 31™ March 2018.

P BT
P S e T
Place: Chandigarh {Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: September 05, 2016 "~ oo : © ' Managing Director > !
A , e : "+ 1 DIN-DD192985 .- oy
A _'.i L1 'n..-‘:-_'.‘v Gﬁ]
CEQ AND CFO CERTIFICATION T
To . i : T A BT
The Board of Directors l ’
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited
(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Hisar Spinning Mills . -,,19
Limited for the year ended,31* March, 2016 and to the best of our knowledge and-belief, we .i.p

state that; ' vy

(i} these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statements that might be misleading;

(i) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and sre in compliance
with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. :

{b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered inio by the

’ Company during ihe year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's code of
conduct. ’

{c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial

reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company
pertaining to financial reporting. Wa have not coma.across any reportable deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal cantrols. .

{d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audil Committes:
(i) thal there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year:
{ii) that there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and
(i) that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Yours sincerely,

Sd/- - Sd/-
{Gopal Krighan Gupta) {Sharad Goel)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Place: Chandigarh-
Date: September 05, 2016
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED b . Gt b '
CERTIFICATE OF PRACTICING compA" CRETARY "ON~ LIANCE OF. CONDITIONS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AS PER. 'E"V OF. THE-

OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTSl REGULA] IONS 2Q1§ R -

To the Members of Hisar Splnnlug Mllls lelnd

D B AT PP q,«,.,'u =l

) hava examinad the compliance of the condnl:ons of Comporate Govamanee by Hisar Spmning 'Mulls l_(mnod

Hisar (Haryana) for the year ended March™31, 2016 as stipulated in Regula:ion E of: Schedule 'V of the SEBI.

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requuramants] Regulations 2015.

. »
. -

* The compliance of conditions of Corporate-Govemance is the responsnbimy of the. Company‘s Management. My',

examination was limited to the proceduras and implementation thereof, adopted by tha Company for.ansuring the
compliance of the conditlons of Governance. h is neither an.audit.nor. an axpmssion of an-opinion on the financial
slalemenis of the company. -
In my 6ptmon and to the best of my information and .according to the explanations given ‘to ‘me, and ‘the
information given-by the management.-| certify that the-company has comphed with .the conditions .of Corporate
Gavernance as stipulated in the above mentioned. regulatmns ‘e R
C s, tc b .,“ .

1 state that in respect of investar grievance recenred durlng the’ yaar anded IMarch 31, 2018, ‘no investor
grievances wera pending against the Company, as per the records mamtamad by. Ihe Company:and presented to
the Investors/Shareholders. Grisvance Committee.. —

| further state that.compliance is neilber an assurance as .lo tha future \nabllity of the' Company;nor the:efficiency
-or effectiveness with which the Management has conduicted the-affairs of. Ihe company

-

~ . Tsdl: |

Place: Chandigarh - SANJIVKUMARGOEL  }
Date: 05.09.2016- . Practicing Campany Secretary
: FCS'No. 2107 7

A 04

'C P No. 1248

. % -
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HISAR'SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ~ '~ * ‘ T E

Gy D+ 0 .- ANNEXURE "1’ TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT. *

Q0 Byt e S AT e 1 et papay ue a8
flerwme v v 0162327 g o RETARIAL AUDIT REPORT o

Pursuaqt to se«:ticng‘_:1 2044(”1 oIf the: Companles Act, 2013 and ruia No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment
R e M PO T2 e B ST H O s ¢ R L S ¢
and Remuneration Personnel) Rples, 2014 - . . L
' FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH, 2016
To, :

The Members, . .

Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

9th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road,

[ V.P.O Dabra { Hisar), Haryana -125005

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the complianca of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Hisar Spinning Mills Limited (hereinafier called “the company®). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliance and expressing my opinion thareon.

Based on my verification of the Hisar Spinning Mills Limited's books, papers, minules books , forms and returns
filed and other records. mainlained by the company and alse the information provided by the Company. its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | heraby report that in
my opinion , the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2016
complied with the slalutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes
and compliance -mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to lhe reporling made hereinafter:

1. | have examined the books, papers minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Hisar Spinning Mills Limited for the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 according to the provisions of

i} The companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; ‘.
ii} The Securities Contracts (Regulations) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules rmade there under;
ii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye Laws framed there under:
iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1989 and the rules and regulations made thera under 1o the
exient of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and Exlernal Commarcial
" Borrowings; . .
v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Sacurities and Exchange Board of
india Act, 1992 {SEBI Act):- : ,

}‘ {a)The Securilies and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeover)
Regulations, 2011; .
{b)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regutations, 1992, and
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibilion of Insidear Trading) Regulations, 2015; ]
(¢)The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); . -
(d)The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014
: {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); ’ -
t {e)The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt Securitias) Regutations, 2008
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audil Period); . .
(fiThe Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulstions, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; )
(g)The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
’ {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); S -
_ (h)The Securities and Exchangé Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 .
L {Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); ..

2. | have relied on the representation made by the company and its officers for systems and me-chanism put in
place by the company for compliances under the applicable Acl, Laws and Regutations to the Company.
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' 3. | have also examined eomphance with applicable clauses of the followings:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Sacretaries of India, effeclive fmm Jufy 01,
. 2015,
ii) The erstwhile Listing Agreement entered into by the compaury with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and-
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Dsdosure Requ:remem)
Regulations,-2015 notified w.e.l. Dacember 01, 2015.

Dunnglheyearunderrewew lheCompanyhasoompiedMﬂ‘nepw\monsdmeMt.Rm Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. menboned above. . . )

| further report that: .
The Board of Directors of the Company s duly constituted with proper batance of Executive Directors, Non —
Executive Direclors and Indepandent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that
took place during.the period, underremewwere camied out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is-given to all directors to schedule-the Board Meeting, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at loast seven.days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on 1:he agendaatems before the meeting and for meaningful participation al the meehng

W SRR S

All decisions at Boerd Meetings-and Committee Meetings were carred out unanimously as moorded in the
minutes of tha.meetings of the.Board of Directors or Commitiees of the Board, as the casa may be.

| further report thet there are adequate systems and processes in tha company commensurate with the size and
operations of the.company to monitor and ensure comptiance with-applicable laws, suits, ruies regulatiom and

guidelines.
Place: Chandigarh ' . | sdr . _
Date: 05/08/2016 : Sanjiv Kumar Goel |
: FCSNo2107  °
C P No. 1248
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Annexure '2’ to Directors’ Report

Information as per section 217(1){e) read with companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Directors)
Rules 1988 and forming part of the Director's Report for the period ended 31st March, 2016.

I. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a) Energy conservation measures taken :

The Company has been giving high priority lo conservation of energy by close monitoring of anergy consuming
equipments. All efforts are made for installing energy saving davices wheraver required. :

b} Addltional investment and proposals, if any, being implemanted for reduction of consumption of
enargy: : .

New equipments, whenever required, are purchased from time 1o time. ]

c} impact of the measures at (a) & (b} above for reduction of energy consumption and
consequent impact on the cost of production of goods:

The measures laken to conserve energy resulted in more production. However, there was no savings in
consumption due to increased production and increase in rates of power.

d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production as per Form-A of the
annexure to the rules in respect of industries specified in the schedule thereto:

PARTICULARS CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
A) Power and Fuel consumption
a} Purchased Unil (KW) 4604428 4132768
Total Amount (Rs.} 39374790 33508880
Rate/Unit (Rs) 8.55 8.11
b} Through Dissel Generator
Units{Kw} 150850 304500
Total Amount { Rs.} . ’ 2075420 4845544
Rate/Unit (Rs/KW) 13.76 . 15.91
B) Consumption Per Unit Of 1549 Units 1457 Units
Production . .
Steam Coal Nil Nil
Furnace Qil Nil Nil
Others/Inlemal Generators Nil Nil
Cotton Yarn Production In MT 3070.484 3045.629
Total Units Consumaed 4755276 . 4437268
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Il. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION :
Efforts mada in technology absorption as per Form-B of the Annexure to the Rules.
1} Research & Deve!opmem {(R&D)

a) Specific-area-in- whuch R & D carried by the Company Nil
b) Benalfits derived as a result of the above R & D: Nil
c} Future plan of Action: Nil

d) Expenditureon R & D {Rs. In Lacs)
Capital e ~TNIL )
Ravenue .; NIL
Total- .. NIL 4
Total R & D expenditure as a percantage of Total Turnaver = NIL -
2} TECHNOLOGY ABé:DRPTION. ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION _ !

a) Efforts, in brief, made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innavation: Nil -
b} Benefits derived as a resull of the above effots a. g. product improvement, cost reduction,
product development, impaort substitution etc: Nil

c)-In case-of imported technology {imported during tha last 5 ysar reckoned from tha beginning of
the financial year) - Nul

3) FOREIGN' EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

. Activities relating to.export, initiatives taken to increase exporl, development of new export markets f0r
products and servnces and export plans: Nil

Value of imports t_:alculatod on C.\.F. basis:
" Amount {in Rs.)

Particulars " For the Yaar anded 11.03.2016
Storgs & Spares parts 207626
Capital Goods 45215111
Total - 45422737

Expenditure. in foreign currency durlng the financial year on account:

s . - Amount (in Rs.} -

Particulars - . For the Year ended 31.03.2016 ' ) 1
Commission on sales 75668"

Total - 75666 .

-

Eamings in foraig'n exchange:

Exporl of goods calcutated on FOB basis

‘ _.
_Amount (in.Rs.} 3

Particulars . For the Year endad 31.03.2016
Manufac\ured Goods 7519887
Total . . 7519887

By order of the Board of Directors

A | X .‘
. 8di-’ . - 8dJ-
Piace: Chandigarh ) {Anurag Gupta) (Gopal Krishan Gupta}
Dated: September 05, 2016 s Executiva Director Managing'Dlmctor
DIN-00192838 DIN-00192985
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Annexure 'Y to Directors' Report

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2016
Of ,
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

{Pursuant to section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

! RE.GISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

‘ i)‘ CIN - » L17112HR1992PLC0O31621
i) {Registration Date ; r10.04.1992
i) |Name of the Company : Hisar Spinning Mills Limited
iv) |Category / Sub-Category of the ; :Public Company limited by shares
Company

v} |Address of the Registered ofice and |: 9™ KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, Village & Posl Office
contact details *| Dabra, Hisar

vi)  |Whether listed company * © Yes

vii} |Name, Address and Contact details of |: Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 110015

ll. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business aclivities contributing 10 % or more of the total tumaover of the company shall be stated:-

Si. No. |Name and Descriplion of main products/  |NIC Code of the % to total tumover of the
Senvices Product/ service- 'oompany
1. {Spinning | 235112352/24T1/2472 | 100
27
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P&

il. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: - Nil

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i} Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Sharehoiders

_ E —

*No. of Shares held at the beginning of
© {he year

1

*

No. of Shares held al the end of the year

[ —

—A. Promoters

2w ———

! Demat - Physical

| l

i Total

% of

- -Tatal
Share
&

Demat

Physical

Total

% of

* rTotal

Shares

Chang
e

during
the
year

(1) Indian
a) o
IndividualfHUF

1
]

| 388390 ' 1456710

1845100 49.40 1864370

1864370

49.92

0.52

b) Central Gowvt
c) State Govt (s}
d) Bodies Corp.

e)Banks / Fl

f) Any Other.....

Sub-total (A)
M-

1458710

1845100 49540 1864370

1864370

{2) Foreign

a) NRis - !
Individuals

b} Other -, -
Individuals

¢} Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / Fl

e) Any Other._

Sub-total (A)
@

Total

Promoter {A) =
" {ANH{AN2)

"I 388390 | 1456710
sharaholding of |° !

1845100 45.40 1864370

1864370

49.92

0.52

-

' ==+ - —-= BrPoblic'Shareholding

1. Institutions.

a) Mutual Funds |°

b} Banks / Fi

, ¢)Caniral Govt

" d) State Gowi(s)
- 8)Venlure:
Capital Funds.
- _" - e = Ll .h-l-'-—-n...-ﬁ-”—u-__—-' —
. 1) Insurance =+ i,
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

) Companies

.g) Flis

h} Foreign
Ventura Capital
Funds

i} Others
(specify)

'Sub-total
{B)(1):-

2. Non-lnstitutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i} Indian

68800

23700

92500

i) Overseas

2.48

25500

83200

223

-0.25

b} Individuals

i) tndividual

shareholders

haolding nominal
, share capital
fupto Rs. 1 lakh

198900

1531200

1728100

46.27

1534430

1738130

46.54

0.27

1 i} Individual

. shareholders

, holding

'nominal share

, capital in

| excess of Rs 1
lakh

49100

20000

69100

1.85

0 49100

1.31

"¢) Others
{specify)

200

200

0.00

200

200 0.00

Sub-total
< (B)2):-

315000

1574900

1889900 .

50.80

310700

1559930

1870630

50.08

Total Pubdic

{ Shareholding
{BYBY1}+
1{B)(2)

-1 315000

1574900

1889900

50.60

! 310700

f

1559930

1870630

50.08

C. Shares held
' by Custodian for
@Rs & ADRs

'Grand Total
'{A+B+C)

703390

3031610

3735000

100 2175070

i
|

1559930

JI735000

100

{()Shareholding of Promoters

SINo.
Name

Shareholder's

the year

.| year

Shareholding at the beginning of | Share holding at the end of the

No. of
Shares

% of total

the
company

Shares of

dom —
%af :No. of
Shares !Shares
Pledge ‘
d/ |
encum |
bered !

% of total
Shares of

- ithe

company

%of
Shares
Pledged /
encumber
ed lo total
shares

% change
in share -
holding
during the
year
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

1

: .totolal |
! i tgharas '
1 1 .
| | i
U S i !
1. 'Ram Charan ' - - .
' Budhwar 10 0.00 . 0 0.00
2. 1Ravi Raj Singh 10 000 |- 0 0.00 - -
3. | Satvir Singh 10 0.00 | 0 0.00 - -
4. | Arun Goel 25000 067 - 25000 | 0.67 - -
5. |Hari Krishan 400 00 |- 0 0.00 - -0.01
6. |Sharat G Goel 24940 067 |- 28040 0.75 . 0.08
7. |Sharat G Goal 3100 008 |- 0 0.00 - -0.08
8. |Devindar Kumar - - -
Goel 45000 1.20 45000 1.20
8. |Gulab Singh - - -
Goel(HUF) 27940 0.75 27940 0.75
10.| Gulab Singh Goel 975600 261 |- 97600 2.61 - -
11.iSharad Goel 39400 105 |- 133000 | 3.56 - 251
12.|Manju Goel 10000 027 |- 15100 0.40 - 0.13
13.} Triloki Nsth Goel 400 001 |- 0 0.00 - 001 |
14.|Hasi Kishan Goel 40000 107 |- 40400 1.08 - 0.0t
15.{ Sunita Goel 48900 131 - 56900 1.52 - 021
16.|Usha Rani Gupta 75000 200 |- 75000 2.01 - -
17.|Gapal Krishan - . - -
Gupta 115000 3.08 115000 3.08 .
18.IM.L. Kansal 163867 | 439 |- 163867 | 4.39 . -
*19.| Sharda Kansat 60000 161 | 60000 1.61 - - "
20.[ sapna Kansal 63100 169 |- 83100 1.89 - - j
21.} Salesh Gupta 12400 033 |- 0 0.00 - 033 |
22.! Shashi Bhushan - - 0.57 |
Gupta 33150 0.89 54650 1.46 ;
23.| Anuj Gupta 79765 214 |- 181683 4.86 - 2.72
24.lanyj Gupta™{HUF) | *"291007 078 |- ¢ | 0.0 - ~0.78"
25.[ Anurag Gupta 87050 233 |- 184250 4,93 - 2.60
26.} Ashwani Kumar 29650 0.80 |- 52950 1.42 - 0.62
27.|Gopal Krishan - - -0.46
Gupta & Sons HUF 17018 0.46 0 0.00
28.|Roshan Lal Gupta . - -0.54
& Sons HUF’ 20000 0.54 0.00
29.| Hari Kumar 27000 072 |- 0.00 - 072
30} Tara Davi 24500 066 |- | 0.00 - -0.66
30
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31.| salesh Gupta - 5100 014 |- 0 000 |- - -0.14
32.! Anurag Gupta - . - . -0.n8
(HUF) - 32800 0.88 0 0.00
33.| Anju Gupla 7700 021 |- 7700 0.21 e -
34,| Gopat Krishan - - -0.27
Gupla Executor _
Roshan Lal 10000 0.27 0 0.00
35.| Gopal Anurag - - -
(HUF) 25000 0.67 25000 0.67
" 36.| Gopal Krishan & . - 0
Sons (HUF) 26000 070 |- 0 0.00
37.} Gopal Anuj (HUF) 25000 087 |- 25000 0.68 - 0.01
38.| Nikhil Goel 160000 428 |- 160400 | 4.29 - 0.01
. 39 Shilpa Garg 8700 023 |- g700 | o023 | - | -
40.| Ritesh Goel 9300 . 025 |- 9300 0.25 - -
41.] Ankit Goel 146190 an |- 146190 <X-1 I -
42.| Bindu Goel 10000 027 |- 10000 0.27 . -
43. Shruti Goel 11000 029 - 11000 0.29 - -
44 | Tanun Goel 19100 0.51 |- 19100 0.52 - 0.01
45.|Manju Goel 5100 0.14 |- 0 0.00 - -0.14
46.}Megha Goel 7200 019 | 7200 0.19 . -
47. Sharad Goel 93600 251 |- 0 0.00 - -2.51
48.| Naveen Kansal 9100 024 |- 15300 0.42 - 0.18
49.| Anurag Gupta 17200 046 |- 0 0.00 - -0.46
50.| Anyj Gupta 17400 047 |- 9 . 0.00 .- -0.47
Total ] K
1845100 49.40 1864370 49.92 0.52

{iii) Change in Promotars’ Shareholding ( please specify, if thare is no change) :

LR Shareholkding at the Cumulative Sharehoiding
No beginning of the year during the year’
No. of "% of total No, of % of total shares
shares  'shares of the |shares of the company
. company : _
Al the beginning of the 1845100 4940 | 1864370 49.92
year i i
Increase/Decrease 19270 |} 0.52 | - -
during the ysar } v
At the End of the yearJ 18684370 4992 : 1864370 49.92
3
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{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (ol.hér than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs

and ADRs): .
Sl ‘ _ |'Shareholding at the Cumulative Sharehokding
No. _ beginning of the year during the year
Top 10 Shareholders No. of shares|% of total | No. of % of tolal  |% change in
shares of  shares shares of  jshare holding
“ithe ‘ | the ~|during the
company company  |year
|4 [Shashi Rani & Shyam Sunder .
| Gupta 49100 1.31 49100 13
2 20000 .
Sushila Goel 054 . 20000 0.54
3 |Shri Parasram Holdings Pt _ -0.33
Lid 18900 0.51 6900 0.18
4 : .
Amulya Leasing & Finance Lid. } 16700 0.45 16700 0.45
5 -
Multiplex Capital Lid. 15900 043 15300 0.43
6 -
CPR Capital Services Lid. 12800 0.34 12800 0.34
7 . -
Raman Mehra 7300 0.20 7300 0.20
8 ' . -
_ Alankit Assiquments Limited (6700 0.18 6700 0.18
39 .
Bajrang Lal Goel 6200 017 6200 017
10 C 0.14
Ram Phal 00 0.00 5300 0.14

{v) Sharaholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl ' For Each of the Directors and ! Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding
No. 'KMP {year . during the year
! ' .
‘Name of the Direclor/ KMP No. of shares | % of tolal shares of 'INo. of % of total shares
’ the company shares of the company
b1 ;GOPAL'KRISHAN GUPTA 115000 308 | 115000 3.08
| 2., ANURAG GUPTA I 104250 279 . 184250 4.93.
3. ‘,SAPNA KANSAL i 63100 1.69 63100_ 1.69
4. I’SHARAD GOEL 133000 3.56 133000 3.56
5. 1 TRILOKI NATH GOEL 400 0.0 400 0.0
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V. INDEBTEDNESS -
Indebtedness of the Company including interast outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

_ (InRs.)
Secured Loans Unsetured Deposits . Total
excluding deposits | Loans o Indebtedness
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year ] .
i) Principal Amount | 29627880 | - - 29627880
ii) Interest due but | - ! - - -
not paid
i} Interest accrued | 174009 - - ' 174009
but not due :
Total (i+ii+iii) 29801889 - : - ' 29801889
Changae in Indebtedness during the financial year
{a} Addition 31016807 - - 31016807
(b)  Reduction - .- - -
Net Change 31016807 - . - 31016807
1
I ———
.Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
11} Principal Amount 60418470 - - 60418470
(i) Interest due but - - — -
nol pawd
i) Interest accrued 400228 - - 400226
but nol due
"Total {i+ii+li) 60818696 - T T T eostsess
i .
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager :-

{InRs.)

- . -

81 |Pariculars of

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
Ino. {Remuneralion’

Total Amount

Mr. Anurag Gupala -

1. (Gross salary | T 360000 -
{a} Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17{1} of the

Income-tax Act, 1961

360000

(b) Value of perquisites |~ - ° - -
w's 17{2) Income-tax a
Act, 1961

{c) Profits in lieu of - ) - -
salary under section * '
17(3) Income-tax Act, .
1961 '

Stock Option - e e - i -

Sweal Equity L - -

Commission -~ [. = = -

: - as % of profit :_ o - -

SO S R LY S ST R

- others, specify... - . - -

5. |Others, please specify. | - - -
. | {Provident fund) ;

Total(A) - .

360000 -

360000

Ceiling as per the Act” {As per Schedule.V of the Companies Act. 2013

B. Remunerationto dthar-directorgi- " N

{In Rs.)

“ -

'§h. | Parficulars of

| Name of-Directors -
‘I ng. Remuneration. - “ - -

Total Amount

' 1. Independent ' - -
1Directors

Fee for attendingboard | -+ = - -
{ committee meatings - ’

Commission . - o - -

Others. please‘s;‘)edfy .- -

- Ta_lalﬁ} ) ' - - -
2..0ther Non-Executive [ - - -
Directors - N

Fee.for attending.board |.. -~ + - -
/ commitiee meetings+ -{* *
Comimigsion; - .- - -

£ A

Akt o )
Others. please specify. | » -~ -. - -

R v 34
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b .

"{Total(2) . -

Total (B)=(1+2) -

Remuneration .

Total Managerial -

the Act .

Overall Ceiling as per | No Sitting Fees were paid to any Independent Director

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL ‘OTH‘ER THAN MD/MANAGERWTD

{In Rs.)

Sl.  Particulars of Remuneration

no. | :

Key Managerial Personnel

Tanu Sharma
Company
Secretary

Sharad Goel

_Chiet Financial

Officer

Total

1. . iGross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961

125598

551613
SR « |

677211

(b} Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

. (c) Profits in lieu of salary under
. saction 17{3) Income-tax
' Act, 1961

2. Swock Option

Sweat Equity

. Commission
1;33 % of

. ﬁroﬁt
.- others, specify...

5 Others, please .
specify (Provident fund)

Total

125598

531613

677211

V. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOURDING OF OFFENCES: - NIL
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Annexure ‘4’ to Directors’ Report \

NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND EVALUATION POLICY

1. INTRODUCTION

The Company conducts its operations under the d:recbons of the Board of Directors within the framework laid
down by the'Companies Act, 2013, the Articles of Association of the Company, Lisling Agreement with stock
exchanges, internal code of conducl and policies formulated by the Company for its Board of Directors and,
Senior Management. The Company’s Board of Directors is dedicated lo act in good faith, exercise their judgmaent 1
on an informed basis and in the best interest of ihe Company and its stakeholders. This policy is in compliance §
with the Section 178 of the-Companies Acl, 2013 read with rules framed thereto and Clauses. of the Listing
Regulations. .

The primary- objective of the Policy is lo provide a framework and set standards for their nomination,

remuneration and evaluation of the Directors, Key Managerial Perscnnel and officials comprising ths Senior

Management. The Company aims to achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills amongst its Directors, Key
. Managerial Personnel and Senior Management.

The Nomination, Remuneration and .Evaluation Policy ("the Policy’) applies to the Board of Directors (“the
Board™), Key Managerial Personnel (the *KMP*) and the Senior Management Personne! of Hisar Spinning Mills
Limited (the “Company”).

"Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) mgans-

(i) Chairman & Managing Director
{ii) Company Secretary

(iii} Whole- tima Director

(iv} Chief Financial Officer; and
{v) Such other Officer as may be prescribed by the Board or the Central Government.

The expression “senior management” means personnel of-the company who are members of its core
management team exchuding. Board of Direclors comprising all-members of managemenl one level betow the
executive directors, including the functionsl heads.

2. TCONSTITUTION OF NOMINATIONAND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination.and-Remuneration Committee shall.be.constituted by the Board of Directors in ils. Meelmg The
members-of ihe Committee present at the meeting shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman or appoint
Chairman of the Committee. The Chairman of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee
but shall nol be a Chairman of the Committee. Minimum two members shall constitute a quorum for the
Committee Meeting. The terms of the Committee shall be decided by the Board of Directors in its meeting. The
Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee could be present at the Annual General Meeting or
may nominate some other member o answer the shareholder's queries. ’

COMMITTEE MEMBER'S INTERESTS
a} A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own remuneratton is discussed at a
-meeting or when his performance is being evaluated.

(_,b) The Conlnee may invite.such. execuiwes as it considers appropnate .o be_present at the meetings of lhe
Committas:

VOTING

a) Matters arising for determination at the Committee Meetings shall be decided by a majorily shail be decided by

a majority of votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be deemed a
decision of the Committea.

b} In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.
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3.” TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE NOI‘Q!IN_ATION AND.REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

R Identification of persons qualified to be the directors and in sennor managamenl in accordance with the criteria -
taid down.
ll. Recommend to the Board appointed and removal of the directors apart from the nommee direclors as
proposad by the Government of Punjab and in the Senior Managemenl
Itk Evaluation of every director's performance. _
IV. Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director.
V. Recommendation of Remuneration policy for the directors, KMP and other employees.
VI. Other Terms of Reference/ scope of Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall be as notified by the
" appropriate authority from lime to time or as directed Dy the Board of Directors of the Company from lime to lime.

4. ~ RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE COMMITTEE
‘= Raviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experiance) of the Board at
least annually and making recommendations on any proposed- changes to- the Board to complement lhe
Company’s corporate strategy, with the objective to diversify the Board;

= Identifying individuals suitably qualified to be appointed as the KMPs or in tha Senior Management of the
Company;
. Recornrnendlng to the Board on Ihe selection of individuals nomlnaled for difectorship;
= Making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration payable to the Duectorsf KMPs/ Senior Officials so
appointed/ reappointed;
« Assessing the independence of independent directors; )

= Such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in view of the Listing
Agraemem and provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under;
» To make recommendations to the Board oonoemmg any malters relaling to the conﬂnuation in office of any
Director al any time including the suspension or termination of service of an Executive Director as an employee
of the Company subject to the provision of the law and their service contract;
= Ensure that level and compasiticn of remuneration is reasonable and sufficienl, relationship of remuneration to
performance.is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; .
« To devise a policy on Board diversity;
» To develop a succession plan for the Board and o regularty review the plan

5. RESPONSIBILITI f THE BOARD

It shall be the duty of the Chairman of the Board, who shall ba supported by the Company Secretary to organize
- the evaluation process and accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The evaluation process will be
- uged constructively as a system to improve the direclors' and committees’ effectiveness, to maximize their -
strength and to tackle their shoricomings.
- The Board of Directors shail undertake the following activities on an annual basis:

-1. The Chairman of the Company shall meet with each and every director individually to discuss his/ her
performance throughout the year.

2. Review performance evaluation repons submitted by the Chairperson of various commitiees along with their
suggestions on improving the eflectivenass of the committee. Also, the requirement of establishing any new
commitiees shall be reviewed by the Board on an annual basis.

3.Review the various strategies of the Company and accordingly set the performance objectives for directors, in
consistency with varying natura and requirements of Company's business.

4. The Board as a.whole shall discuss and analyze ils own performance during the year together with
.suggestions for improvément thereon, pursunnt 1o tha performance abjsclives,

In conformity with the requiremeants of the Act, the performance evaluation of mdepend ent dareclors shall be done
by the entire Board of Directors, excludlng the director being avaluated.

6. ONSIBIL INDPENDENT DIRECTORS

Iy persuance of the Companies Act, 2013 and rulas framed and notified there under read with the amendments in
tha Listing' Agreement as notifidd on 17" April, 2014, the ambil of roles and respénsibilities of Independent
Dlrectors has widened, The following roles, responsibilities and duties hava been duly incorporated so far;
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1. Limiton number of directorshlps :
a. A person shall not serve as an independent d:reclor in more lhan saven ksted companies.
b. Further, any person who {8 serving as a whold time director in any listed .company shall serva ‘as an |
independent director in not more than threa listed companies.
‘2. Every independant diractor shall at the first meeting of the Board in which he parlmpales as a dlrector and
thereafter at the firsl meeting of the Board in every financial year or whenever there is any change in the
. circumstances which may affect his status as an indepandent director, give a dedarahon that he meels the
criteria of independence.
3. Qualifications of Independent director.- An indepandent director shak possass appropriate skills,
_experience and knowledge in one or more fields of finance, law, management, sales, marksting, administration,
research; corporate govemance, technical operations or other disciplines related to the company’s business.
4. Guidelines of professional conduct:
An indepandeni director shall: -
{a) uphold athical standards of integrity and problty
(b) act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties;
ic) exercise his responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company;
1) devote sufficient time and aftention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced decisu)n maknng
) nol allow any extraneous considerations that willwitiate his exercise of objective independant judgment in Lhe.
paramount interast of thé company as a whole, while concurring in or dissenting from the collective judgment of
tha Board in its decision making:
{1} not abuse his posilion to the detriment of the company or ‘its shareholders or for the purpose of gaining dxrect
or indirect personal advaniage or advantage for any associaled person; .
(g} refrain from any action that would lead to loss of his independence; +
{h) where circumstances arise which make an independenl director lose his independence, the.independent
director must immaediately inform the Board accordingly,
(i) assist the company in implemenling the best corporate governance praclices.

5. Role and functions: -~
The independent diractors shall: ’
{a) help in bringing an independent 'judgment to bear on the Board's deliberations especially on issues of
stralegy, performance, risk managemant resources, key appointments and standards of conduct; . -
{b) bring &n objective view in the evaluation of the performance of board and managemant; )
(c) scrutinise the performance of management in meeting agreed goals and objectivas and monitor the reporting
of performance;
{d} satisfy themselves on the intagrity of ﬁnanctal mformatlon and thal finahcial controls and the systems of risk -
management are robust and defensible; .
{e) safeguard the inlerests of all stakeholders, pamculariy the minority shareholders
(N balance the conflicting interast of the stakeholders; ) .
(g} determine appropnala levels of remuneration of executive direclors; key msnagena! personnei and semor .
management and have'a prime rola in appointing and where necessary recommend remaval of executive
directors, key managsﬂal persormel and senior management; ’

,~"{h}"moderate and arbitrate_in_ the interest- of:the=company. as a whole, in s:tuauons ol conflict between

managemen! and shareholder's interest.

6. Duties:

. ?

The independent dlractors shali:

. {(a8) underiake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh their skills, knowledge and I’amuhanty with
the company; .
{b) seek appropriate clanﬁcatnon or amplification of |nfonnal|on and where necassary, take and follow appropriate
prolesslonal advice and opinion of oulside experts at the expense of the company;

{c) strive o attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board committees of which he is a member, -
{d) panicipate constructivety and act:vely in the commmaes of the Board in which they arg chalrpersons or
members; . .

(e) strive {0 attend the genaral meet:ngs of the company,

(f) where they have concams aboul the running of the company or a 'pro'posed action, ensurg thal thase are
addressed by the Board and, to the exient that they are not resolved, insist that their concerns are recorded in
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~ the minutes of the Board meeting; ’
(g} keep themsalves well informed about the oompany and the extemal enwronment In which it operales
{h) not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board;
(i} pay sufficient attention and ensure that adequate deliberations are held before appro\nng retated pany

L e transactions and assura themselves that the same are in the interest of the company, -
(i) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequate and functional vigil mechanism and to ensure that the
interests of a person who uses such mechenism are not prejudicially affected on account of such use;
(k) report concerns about unethical behamur. actual or suspected fraud or \nolahon of the company's code of
conduct or ethics policy: T

=*=(1) acting within' I aUlliadty, a¢8islin proreclmg lhe leg:hmate inlerests of the company. shareholders and its
. employees; . '
* {m) not disclose confidential’ information, mdudmg commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales

r promotion plans, unpublished pnca sansltive information, uniess such disclosure is expressly epproved by tha
Board or required by law, 4 ' -- N T T LRI ,.1 f N

{ 7. Separats meetings: | . . Shy Besam L ¢

Y " 1A, i ! LI " |

i - (a) The independent directors of the company shall hold al least one rneeung in a year, withoul the attendance of

3 - non-independent direciors and members of managemant; .
* (b} All the independent directors of the company shall strive to be present at such meeting;
. {c} The meaeting shall: ' )

* {i) review the performance 'of non-mdependenl directors and the Board asa whole
.« {ii) review the performance of the Chairparson of the company,. tnkmg into account the wews of executive
»* directors and non-executive directors;
tm) assass the quality, uantity and timeiineas of- flow of information between the company managament and the
;. Board that is necessary for the Board lo effeclively and reasonably perform their dutiea.

crp

~ 8, Evaluation mechanism: . ) ' ) '
. iy .
.. {a} The Nomination Committée shall lay down the evaluation criteria for performance gvaluation of indepsandant
. directors.
. (b)~The company shell disclese’the criteria for performance evalustion, as laid down by the Nomination
" Committee, in its Annual Report. *-< - =3,
. (€) The performance evaluation of independent dlrectors shall be donae by the entire Board of Directors, axdudmg'
L.the director being evaluated.
.-{d) On the basis of the report of performance evaluabon it shall be determined whether to extend or continue the
:' !erm of appointment of the Independom director. i b
t . ¢ i ) .
9. Trainlng of Inchpondont Directors. | ; ‘ o o )

f ‘.'I:L ﬁ.‘- 'H- - 4

{a) The company shall prmdde suitable tmming la lndependenl dlractors to familiarize lhem with the company.

+ their roles, rights, responsibﬂmes in the company, nature of the Induslry in which the company operatas business
# model of the company, etc,

(b}Thedetadaofsuch training imparted shall ba disclosed | in lheAnnual Report. - .. .

- .

7. AP ' ORS/ KMPa/ SENIO 1S CoroTE .
] ) . i 1
1., Enhancing the competencies of the Board and aﬂmcling as well as retaining talented empkyyoes for fole
 of KMP/ a level below KMP are the basis-for the Nomination and Remuneration Comimitteg to select a candidate’
for appointment to the Board, When recommanding a candidate for appointment (except for Nominee Directors),
the Nominauon and Remuneration Commtrlee has regard to: I’}r wry oo b W"" v
q 4"'"‘) f‘“: » R ‘1-5
» , . tassessing the appointee agamst a range of criferia whadwncludes but not:be:limited’ io qualaﬁcauons
- gkills, ‘ragional'and industry axperience, background and other’ qualtﬁes required:to operate successfuly in the
postt:on with due regard for the beneflts from diversifying the Board, & PO T L RS S
r g ‘“'. ff" a—— A, 1"‘ ﬂ"“"!ha,ur;.'_‘
> . the extent to which the appointes is likety o contribute to the overail effactivensss of tha Board, work
constructiveiy with the extsllng directors and enhance the efﬂciancies of the Company, -
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> the skills and experience that the appointeé brings lo the role of KMP/ Ser;ior Official and how an

*  appointee will enhance the skill sets and experience of the Board as a whole, .
¥ the nature of existing pt‘:‘sitions he'd by the appointes including diractorships or other relationships and
the impact they may have on the appointee’'s ability to exercise independent judgment, )
2. Personal Specifications: o 2o
> - Degree holder in relevant disciplines, ‘ .
+ * Exparence of managemenl in a diverse organization,. N
> Excelient interpersonal, communication and representational skills,
% Demonstrable leadership skills - ' .
» -, Commitment to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity,
% ' Commitment to the promotion of squal qpﬁgortuniﬂes. community cohesion and

health and safety in the workplace, ) . .
3  Having continuous professional development to refresh knowtedge and skills.

For getaits of the personal specifications refer to Annexure 1.
* 3 tatters of Appointment:

Each Director KMP/ Senior Officials is required to sign the letter of appointment with the Company containing the
tarms of appointmant and the role assigned in the Company.

v 4. R.emuneratlon' of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Sanior Managemaent:

. The remuneralion package and compmsalidn for Directors, KMPs and Senior Officials shall be determined as
. per the service rules of the Company and the limits and statutory requiraments as prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 from lime to time. -

" 8. EVALUATION FACTORS:

The Board of Directors 'shall pay regards to the following parameters for tha purpose of evaluating the
performam‘a of a particular director. 4

o .
In respact of each of the evaluation faciors, various -aspects have been provided lo aasist with the évaluaﬂon
process in respect of performance of independent directors, non- indepandent directors, ‘other empioyees of ths
Company and Committees of Directors separately, 8s such, evaluation factors may vary in accordance with thair
respective functions and duties. “ + . 1
Rating Scate |
ol « Scale. M an Performnance * . ' . . L
zel 5 . . " Excellent ' .- )
. K] . Satisfactory
- 2 Neads Improvement '
O 1 Unacceptable . -
- ————— T
Q] 1P L GG o
J{.I,rl‘ ' € IRE o :‘_I_ o . .
[S10r e . T - o - b i t
[ IR EA N e . M—m
] D . . . N i i
3 Compliance with Articles of Association, Companies Acl & other laws 1 1i

2095/ Compliance With ethical standards & code of conduct of the Company
ot ¢ aceistance In implementing Corporate Govemance practices :
> Rendering independent, unbiased opinion, ., 5+ s

Ar-.:’ Auendar}ce&pmsemin General Meetings b S o
-0 5 'Leadership Qualities -~ - pee st . a
¥ Qualifications 1 B ST O TR AP PRI PR R R ‘. b4 . b
o pc 40 7
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Disclosure of non-indapendence, if exists
Independent viaw on key appointments & Strategy Formulation
Objective evaluation of Board's performance -
Raview of integrity of financial information & risk management
Safeguard of stakeholders’ interests
Agppointment & Removal of KMPs '
Determination of level of remuneration of KMPs '
Updation of skills & knowledge
Punctuality
Information regarding exlamal environment
Seaking expert opinion, when requlred
Raising of concerns to the Board
Safeguarding interest of whistle- blowers under Vigil Mechamsm
Reporting of Frauds, violations etc.
Team work attributes . _ . mr
Safeguard of confidential information B
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NON- INDPENDENT DIRECTORS! EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Overall Rating
> Compliance with Article of Association, Companies Acl & other laws
> Strategic Planning- Financial & Business
> Monitoring performance agains| plans
> Compliance with ethical standards & code of conduct
» Exarcising duties diligently
> Qualifications
g Punctuality
5 Disclosure of Interest
> Leadership skills
> Molivating employees, providing assistance & directions
> Establishment of internal control processes
> Communication skills
> Attendance & presence in meetings of Board & Commitlees
> Attendance of General Meetings-
».  Team work attributes
> Moenitoring policies, ancouraging suggashons
»  Safeguard of confidential information ) i ' ;
COMMITTEES OF BOARD
The Board has constituted the following committees: L

ot h

1. Audit Committee . : . O
2. Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee b
kX Sakeholdors Relationship Committee - .

For evalualing the performance of each comrnitlee. the Board of Dlrodors shall ‘pay regards to the lollowing
aspeacts:_ et

Compliance with Articles of Association, Companios Act & other laws
Compliance with ethical standards & Coda of Conduct of lha Company
Commiliea's accomplishments w.r.t. performance objectives

Adherence 1o Articles of Association, Companies Act and other appbcable laws
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5 Redressal of complaints & grievances

v Cootdination with other committees and Board of Directors.

% Fulfilment of roles & responsibilities S

»  Adherence to Company’s' policies and'internal procedures )
9. REVIEW o~ , |

Subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, the "Nomination and -Rgrhﬂneration Committae" reserves its
this policy, if required, to SSCaHaIR (e approprialencss as per the needs ol the

right to review and amend
Company. The Policy may be amended by passing a resolution at a meeting of the Nomination and

.Remuneration Committee and a subsequent approval by the Board of directors in their Board Meeting. ” T
[ L

[ A

10. DISCLOSURE : .
In accordance with the requirement under the Act, disclosure regarding the manner in which the performance

evaluation has been done by the Board of Directors of its own performance, performance of various commitiees
- of Directors and individual directors’ performance will be made by the Board of Directors in the Board's Report.
3Further, the Board's Report containing such statement will be made avaitable for the review of shareholders at

the General Meeting of the Company.

-Annexure- 1
-Personal Specifications for Directors:

1. Qualifications

» Degree holder inurelevant disciplines '(e;g;- management; accountancy; legal); or
% Recognised speciatist '

-~

2,  Experience

» Experience of management in a diverse organization” ’ -

5. Experience ~in  accounting . and finance, _-administration; - corporate and strategic
. planning o fund management ) o -

> Demonstrable ability to'work eflectively with a'Board of Directors (

3. -Skills =
% Excellent interpersonal, communication and representational skils

> Demonstrabie leadership skills o S ,
» Extensive leam building.and management skills T . e .
 Strong influencing and negotiating skils ., . ‘ . ' ‘

¥ Having.continuous.prof%sional development ta refresh knowledge andskils™ 7" t

4. “hbilities and Attributes
PR | \{ ! A .
Tk : . . : o
> Commitment to high standards of ethics, personal integrity and probity "¢ © - ¢ .
% Commitment,” to the promotion  of equal ~ opportunities, community;  cohesion “vand
health and safety in the workplace L < : . :

5. Political inclinations and opinions. - i
L R I
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‘ “Mechanism for Performance Eval'uatiqn of Directors™"
: . @ (Legal Framework) . .

- In the endeavour to safeguard the interest of public at large, the Companies AZt: 2013 (‘the Act') provides that the

.parformance of the Board of Directors of Listed Companies and prascribed class of companies must be reviewed
‘regularly against appropriate measures. For this purpose, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of a
Company has been obliged under Section 178 of the Acl to formulate a draft policy for recommending it lo the
Board of Directors -of tha Company, setfing the criteria, based on which the performance of each and every
director including the parformance of the Board as a whole shall'be assessed by the Beard of Directors of the
Company, Based on such performance evaluation, remuneration of directors, KMPs and employaes shall be
determined. Such an evalualion procedure will provide a fine system of checks and balances on the performance
of the Directors and wilt ensure that they exercise their powers in a ratisnal manner. Relevant extracts of Section
178 of the Act reads as: - . . ) '

Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 o
f1) The Board of Diractors of every listed company and such other class or classes of companias, as may be
prescribed shall ‘constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Commities consisting of three or more non- -
exacutiva directors out of whichnot less than one-half shall be independent directors: .

- Provided thal.the chairperson of the company (whether executive or non-executive} maybe appointed as &
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee but shall not chair such Committee.

{2) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall identify persons who are qualified to become directors
and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal and shall camy out evalsation of eveary director's performance.

(3) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the critaria for detemining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend o the Board a policy, relating’ to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial parsonnel and other amployees, :
{4) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy under sub-section (3} ensure
that— .

(8} the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable. and sufficient to attraci, relain and motivate directors .
of the quality required lo run the company successfully; - © - :

{b) relationship of remuneration to performancae is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

{c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior managemaeant involves a balance hetween
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the

" company and lts goals: - ' o

Provided that such’ policy shall be disclosed in the Board's report. o "

{5) The Board of Directors of a company which consists of more than one thousand shareholders, debenture-

holders, deposit-holders and any other sacurity holders at any time during a financial year shall constitute a

Stakeholders Relationship Committea consisting of a chairperson who shall be a non-axecutive director and such

other members as may be decided by the Board. . ) - .

{6) Tha Stakehclders Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the

company. - ) .

(7} The chairperson of each of the committees constitited under this section or, in his absence, any othia‘r‘7 1

member of the committee authorised by him in this behalf shall attend the general meetings of.the company.

(8) In case of any contravention of the provisions of section 177 and thia seciion, the company shall ba = .

punishable with fine which shall not be less than one lakh rupees but which may extend to five lakh rupees and -

every officer of the company who is in default shall be punishable with imprisonment for a term which may extend. .

lo one year or with fine which shall not be less than twenty-five thousand rupees but which may extend to ‘one

lakh rupees, or with both: - vt .
Provided that non-consideration of resolution of any grievance by the Stakeholders. Relationship Committea. in

" good faith shall not constitute a contravention of this section. . s .

Explanation.—The expression "senior management” means personnel of the company who are‘membqr;s of its” - .
" core management team excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below
the executive directors, including the functional heads. ) L ' '

As per Rule 6 of Companies (Meeting of Board and ils Powers) Rules, 2014, the Board of. Dicactors of following  ~
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classes of Companies shall constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committae:

.

Committees of the Board.- The Board of directors of every listed companies-and the following classes of
companies.shall constilute an Audil Commiltee and a Nomination and Remuneration Committea of the Board-

{i) all- public companies with a paid up capital of ten crore fupeas or more;

{ii} all public companies having turnover of one hundred crore rupees or more, ' . - .
(i} all public companies, having in aggregate, outstanding loans or borrowings or debentures or deposils
exceeding fifty crore rupees or more. : ' N .

Explanation.- The paid up share capilal or tumover or outstanding loans, or bommowirgs or debentures of

deposils, as the case may be, as .existing on tha date of last audited Financial Statements shall be taken inlo
account for the purposes of this rule.

The Act, under Clause VIl of schedule 1V, casts an obligation on the part of the Board of Directors for avaluating
ihe performance of independent directors. All tha Directors on the Board of a Company, excepd the independent
director whose perdormance is-being evaluated, will assess the performance of independent director. Accordingly.
a report of performance evaluation of each independent director of the Company would be prepared, which would
determine whather 10 extend or continue the term of appoiniment of the concemed independent director or not,

SCHEDULE IV )
[Sea section 149(8))
CODE FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Code is a guide to professional conduct for independent direclors. Adherence io thesa standards by
independent directors and fulfillment of their responsibilities in a professional and faithful manner will- promote
confidence of the investment community, parliculardy minorily shareholders, regulators and companies in the
institution of independant directors. -

I. Guidelines of professional conduct:
An independent director shall: *

{1) uphoid ethical standards of Integrity.and probity;
{2) act objectively and constructively while exercising his duties;

{3) exercise his responsibilities in a bona fide manner in the interest of the company; .

(4) devote sufficient lime and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced decision making;
(5) not allow any exiraneous considerations that will vitiale his exercise of objective independant judgment in the
paramount interest of the company as a whola, while concurring in or dissenting from the collective judgment of
the Board in its decision making; - - - . _ -
(8) not rbuse his posilion to the detriment of the .company or Its shareholders of for the purposae of gaining direct
or indirect personal advantage or advantage for any associsted person; .o

(7} refrain [rom any action that would lead to loss of his independence; ! §o )
(8) where circumstances arise which make an independent, director lose his independence, the independent

adireclér_ must immediately inform the Board accondingly.

{9) assist the company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.

ll. Role and functions:
r )

The independent directors shall:

.{1) help in-bringing an independent Judgment .to bear on the Board’s delibarntions espacially on issues of
strategy, performance. risk management, resources, key appointments and standards of conduct; S
(2) bring an objective view in the evaluation of the performance of board and management; T
{3) scrutinise the performance of management in-meeting agreed goats and objectives and monitor the reporting
of performance; o .- . :

(4) satisfy themselves on the integrity of financial information and that financial controld and the systems of risk
management are robust and dafensible; . . .

a _ _ Lo
{5) safeguard the interests of all stakeholdars, particularly the minority sharehoiders: ,
(6) batance the conflicling interest of the stakeholders; .
44
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(7} determine_appropriate levels of remuneration of executive directors, key managerial personnel and .senior
. management and have a prime role in appointing and where necessary recommend removal of executive
directors, key managerial personnal and senior managemaent; . _
-(8) moderate and arbitrale in the interest of the company as a8 whole, in situations of conflict between
~—management-and shareholder's interest,

Iil, Duties:
The independent directors shall :

{1) undertake appropriate induction and regularly update and refresh their skills, knowledge and familiarity with
+ the company; .

"(2) seek appropriate clarification or amplification of information and, where necessary, take end follow appropriate
1 professional advice and opinion of outside experts at the expense of the company;

{J) strive lo attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Board commiltees of which he is @8 member;

(4) participate constructively and actively in the committees of the Board in which they are chairpersons or

members; )

{S) strive to attend the general meetings of the company;

{6) where they have concerns about the running of the company or a proposed aclion, ensure that these are

ddressed by the Board and, to the extent that they are not resoived, insist that their concerns are recorded in

the minutes of the Board meeting;

(7} keep themselves well informed about the company and the external enviconment in which it operates; .

(8} not to unfairly obstruct the functioning of an otherwise proper Board or committee of the Board:;
1(9) pay sufficient atiention and ensure that adequate deliberafions are held before approving related party
. fransactions and assure themselves that the same are in the interest of the company,

*(10) ascertain and ensure that the company has an adequate and functional vigil mechanism and (o ensure that
- the interests of a person who uses such mechanism are nol prajudicially affected on account of such use:

(11) report concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s code of
: conduct or ethics policy; _

(12) acting within his authority, assist in protecting the legitimate interests of the company, sharaholders and its
» employees,
+ {13} not disclose confidential information, including commercial secrets, technologies, advertising and sales
¢ promotion pians, unpublished price sensitive information, unless such disciosurs is expressly approved by lhe |

Board or required by law.

V. Manner of appeointmaent:

- (1) Appeintment .procass of independent directors shall be independent of the company management; while
1 selacting independent direciors the Board shall ensure that there is appropriate balance of skills, experience and ;
- knowtedgs in the Board so as to enabla the Board lo discharge its functions and duties effectively.

{2) The appeintment of independent director(s} of the company shall be approved at the meeting of the
shareholders. ) ' )
(3) The explanatory statement attached 1o the nolice of the meeting for approving the appointment of

¢ independent director shall include a statemant that in the opinion of the Board, the independent director proposed

-~ 1o be appointed fulflils the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under and that the proposed
director is independent of the managemaent,

" {4) The appointment of independent directors shall be formatised through a letier of appeintment, whith shall set

~=Qut !

{a) the term of appointment;
- {b} the expectation of the Board from the appointed director; the Board-level committee(s) in which the direclor is
expected (o serve and its tasks: . )
2(c) the fiduciary duties thal come with such an appointment along with accompanying liabilities;
{d) provision for Directors and Officers (D and O) insurance, il any; ' )
. {e} the Code of Business Ethics that the company expects its directors and employees 1o follow;
1{f) the list of actions thal a director shouid not do while functioning as such in the company; and
{9) the remuneration. mentioning periodic fees, reimbursement of expenses for participation in the Boards and
~-other meetings.and profil.related commission, if any. .

(5) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall be open for inspection at the
regisiered office of the company by any member during normal business hours. —~
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{6) The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors shall also be posted on the company’s
website. ) ’ -0 .

V. Re-appointment:
The re-appointment of independent director shall be on the basis of report of performance evaluation.
V1. Resignation or removal: '

(1) The resignation or removal of an independent diractor shall be in the same manner a3 is provided in seclions
168 and 169 of the Act. ' '

(2) An independent director who resigns or is removed from the Board of the company shall be replaced by a new
independent director within a period of not more than one hundred and eighty days from the date of such
resignation or removal, as the case may be. '

(3) Where the company fullils the requirement of independent directors in its Board even without filling the
vacancy crealed by such resignation or removal, as the case may be, the requirement of replacement by a new
independent director shall not apply.

VIi. Separate meetings:

(1) The independent directors of the company shall hold at least ona meeting in a year, without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of management; '
(2) All ihe independent directors of the company shall strive lo be present al such meeting:

(3) The meeting shall:

{a) review the performance of nan-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

(b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company. taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors; :

@ (c) assess the quality, quantity and tmeliness of flow of information between the company managemant and the
Board that is necessary for the Board 1o effactively and reasonably perfarm their duties.

Viil. Evaluation mechanism: .

(1) The performance evaluation of independant directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding
the director being evaluated. )

{2) On the basis of the report of performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether 10 extend or continue the
term of appointment of the independent director. :
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIO-N AND ANALYSIS REPORT

INDIAN ECONOMY WITH REGARD TO COTTON & TEXTILE INDUSTRIES

India has the largest area under cotton cullivation in the world, covering 12.7 million hectares of cultivated land,
which constitute about 37% of the total area under cotton in the world. India has been a major exporter since
2005-06 and is currently the world's second largest exporter. Apan from these, cotion is a major component of
-the Indian textiles industry, which consumes over 70% of domestically produced cofton. Cotton is an important
. cash crop. India is a major player in global textiles markel and garments. Il is one of the few nations having
strong presence across the lextile value chain from natural and synthetic fibers to yarn, fabrics, blends and
finished products.

COTTON OVERVIEW ’ -

The Indian cotton scenario is forecast thal cotton production in India will fali by over 7% lo around 34 million
bales (170 kg sach) for the Oclober 2015-September 2016 crop year againsl 38 million bales in lhe previous
year. Despile a drop in production, cotlon prices have been in a bear grip owing lo higher carryover stocks.’
Cotton prices in the international market have also crashed 1o a level not seen since August 2008. The fall is due
to widespread lears that China, which has been a net big importer, has started selling cotton from reserves,
depressing prices world over. China has started to sell 1.5 million ton bales from 3 May 2016 to 31 August
2016 which has further reduced chances of import of cotton in to China. '

For tast fow years, whan market arrivals of cotton reduces to trickle, the prices show sharp upward trend and
» similar situation is expected to happen this year also. The prices have already started firming up and expecied to
+ go up by almost 7-8% in next three months.

The Indian textile industry is export-oriented, facing many challenges, which can be primarily attributed to
¥ sluggish global demand as well as detariorating global compatiliveness of the domestic textile industry. Despite
"+ falling prices, exports to neighboring countries like Pakistan and Bangladesh is laking place dua to freight

advantage of indian players have makes trade viable. '

KEY MOTIVATORS IN BUDGET 2016-17 FOR TEXTILE INDUSTRIES

The Unian Budget 2016-17 is pro-agriculture, pro-rural and pro-infrastructure budget, increased allocations in
l these saclor will definitely help lo strengthen the overall economy and enable long term growth. The Indian
Textile Industries has welcomed the Budget by saying it focuses on employment opportunities and skill, which
makes textile industry a significant contributer to job provider and supporting skill developmenl. Emphasis on
} sector specific skili development and opening of Iraining centers is appreciated. Reduction'in Customs Duty from
+ 5 per cenl to 2.5 per cent on spacified fibres and yarns is indeed a good step and il may result in reduction in
cost of such fibres and yams for spinners and weavers. However, levy of Excise Duly on branded garments
- seems inconsislent and premature when GST introduction is nol teo far away. Increase of service tax from 14.50.
percent to 15 percent will have an adverse effect on tha business economics.

iy,

STRENGTHS & OPPORTUNITIES

There is a scope for patential growth in the textile industry as India's share in globel trade in textiles is weak,
compared to other countries, based on the availability of raw material and skills. The free trade environment is a
good opportunity for Indian textile industry lo increase its shara in the global market. Nevertheless, there ara
growth opportunities for the indian textile industry, especially in yams and fabrics by integrating with ieading
readymade garment-exporting countrias like Bangladesh and Vietnam.

WEAKNESS AND THREATS

increase in the power costs, higher transaction costs, high cost of labour and general increasa in input costs, are
~ all hindering progress, for which the industry has to concentrate on cost reduction exarcises and improvemenit in
efficiency. Shortage of skilled labour, decline in cotton acreage avery year, cotion crop loss due to unfavorabla
monsoon is indeed a major area of concern for textile industries. Cation acreaga in top grower India is likely to
drop by the most in over a decade this year, as plunging prices and fears of a drought prompt farmers (o swilch
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to cultivating pulses in the hope lor betler returns. As per Cotton Association of India, since other crops are giving
betier retumns, there is a drop of around 7 per cent in cotton acreage and that will be ihe steepest fall since 2002 -
03. .

Uncertainties in global textile markel regarding yarn prices, fluctuation in loreign currencies, disturbed counirias
crisis elc. leads to affect cotton procurement, produét pricing, decline demands & customer base. Additional tax
levies in different forms also affect profitability.

Your Company is persistently working hard to face such challenges by cost reduction, process improvements,
minimizing wastage and improving productivity & quality in proximity to mitigate the growing cost pressure in our
overall operations. We are.moving ahead swiflly through our result oriented strategies for future sustainabitity &
davelopment

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Since the government is keen to provide boost to investments in different sectors through its "Ease of doing
business’ mission and policies, il is a long term initiative which will finally improve the GDP in coming years while
increase in foreign exchange. It is expected that this shall drive investment and further growth in the lextile
industry as well. .

The fundamental strength of your Company flows from its strong production base of wide range of yarns from
natural fibres like cotton, silk and synthetic /man-made fibres like polyester, viscose & nylon eic.. The Company
has 8 robust framework for providing quality products at competitive prices by ensuring proper timeline.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM -

A strong intemal contro! is pervasive in the Company. The Company has a well established framework of internal
controt in all areas of its operalions, including suitable monitoring procedures, competent and qualified personnel.
The Internal Audit department also assesses the opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems
and controls, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the Company. In addition to statutory audit,
the financial controls of ihe Company at various locations are reviewed by the Intemal Auditors, who report their
findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee aclively reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness- of intemal control syslem and suggests furthering strengthening the same, if so required. The
Committee meets to review the progress of the internal audit initiatives, significant audit observations, planning
and’ implementation of follow up action required. The Company conducls its business with integrity and high
standard of ethical behaviour and in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations thal govern its business.

POLICY ON PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACES -

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment al workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention of
Sexual Harassment at Workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
{Prevention, Prohibition and Redrassal} Act, 2013. The Management of the Company has also constituted
Internal Complaint Committees at its workplaces to consider and redress the complaints of Sexual Harassment,
During the year under review, the Company has nol received any complaint on sexual harassinent,

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAM EWORK

Business risks exis! for every Company having national and international expasure. Your Company also faces

some such risks. the key ones are unfavourable cotlon prices, financial & liquidity & unexpected changes in

. regulatory framework. To ensure long-term success, it is therefora essential that risks be effectively identified,
analyzed and then miligated by means of appropriate control measures.

We have a comprehensive risk management system/policy in place, which enables us lo assess, miligate and to

monitor the different risks exposed to.the.industry in which the Company operales and 1o take the appropriate

aciion, where ever required. .
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THEALTH AND SAFETY MEASURES

The Company has health and workplace safety programmes in place and has established policies and
procedures aimed at ensuring compliance with applicable laws/legislative requirements. The Company believes

~that the health and safety of the workers and the persons residing in the vicinity of its planls is fundamental to the
business. Commitment to the identification and elimination or control of the workplace hazards for protection of
all is utmost imporiance.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The permanent employee strength of Company as on 31% March 2016 was Twenly Seven. The Company
recognizes the importance and contribution of its human resources for its growth and development and is
commilled to the development of its people. The Company has been adopling methods and praclices for Human
Resources development. With utmost respect to human values, the Company continues to develop its human
resources, through appropriate trainings, workshops, motivationfleadership techniques and employee wellare
activities al regular intervals.

Ld

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
chiectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors Lhat
could influence the Company's oparations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting
selling prices of finished goods, inpul avaitability and yam prices in the domestic and overseas markets, changes
in government regulations, lax laws and economic developments,

By order of tha Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
Place: Chandigarh {Anurag Gupta) (Gopal Krishan Gupta)
Dated: Septemher 05, 2016 Executive Director Managing Director
DIN-00192888 DIN-D)192985
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hisar Spinning Mllis Limited ("the Company”},
which comprise lhe Balance Shéet as at 31st March, 2016, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information. -

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

2

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible far the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in
accordance wilh the accounting.principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Acl, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding the ‘assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularilies; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial
controls, thal were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statemants that giva a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar,

Auditor's Respansibility

3.

4,

Qur responsibility is to exprass an opinion on Lhese financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into dccount the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required: to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Acl and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10} of the

Act. Those Standards require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial stalements are free from material misstatement.
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‘6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtairr audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the financial siatements. The procedures selected depend on the awditors judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of materal misslatement of the financial slatements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, lhe auditor considers intemnal financial control relevant to'the Company's
preparation of the financial stalements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audil also includes evalualing the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well
as gvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

7. We believe that the audit evidenca we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audil opinion on the financial stalemeants,

Opinion

8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financiat statements give' the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a trua and
tair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2016, and ils profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Raeport on Other Legal and Regu !atbry Requirements

9. As required by the Compenies (Auditors Reporl) Order, 2016 (Tthe Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11} of Section 143 of the Act, and on the basis of such checks
: of the books and reconds of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
- explanations given to us, we give in the "Annexure A", a statemenl on the matters specified in the paragraph
3J and 4 of the Order,

L

10.. As required by Saction 143 (3} of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief ware necessary for the purposas of our audit;

() In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books; :

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statemenl of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement deait with by this
_ Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(8) On the basis of the written representations received from the direciors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 184 (2} of the Act;

(N With respect to the adaguacy of Ihe intemal financial controls aver financial reporting of the Company -
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer lo our separate report in “"Annexure B, and
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(g} With respect to the othar matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Audilors) Rules, 2014, in qur opinion and to the best of our information and
according lo the explanations given to us: -

i. The Company has disclosed the impacl of pending litigations as at 31sl March, 2016 on ils
financial position in its financial statements. '

i. The Company did nol have any Iong-term' contracts including derivative cantracts for which there
were any malerial foreseeable losses. ' )

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be lransferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD
Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Registration No, 010505N -
{RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Place: Hisar . Partner
Date : 30.05.2016 Membership No, 088447
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ANNKEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT :
The Annexure refarred 1o in paragraph 9 of the Independent Awditor's Report of aven date to the members of Hisar
Spinning Mills Limited on the financial statements as of and for the year ended 31st March, 2016, we report
that.. '

(i) {a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particutars, including quantitative details and
siluation of fixed assels.

{b} The Compony has a program for the physical verification of fixed assets al periodic intervals. In our
opinion, the period of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its fixed assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification,

(c) According to the information and explanations given 10 us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management al reasonable intervats. The
discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical siocks and the book records were not material.

(i) The Company has not granted any ioans, secured or unsecured o companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or olher parties covered in the register maintained under Seclion 189 of the Act. Thus,
paragraph 3{ii) (a). (b) and {c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
“the Company, the Company has not advanced any loans or made any investments or given any guarantees
or provided any securily during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public,

(vi) The Central Governmenl has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-saction {1) of Section
148 of the Act, far any of the products of the Company.

{(vi) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed slatutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ slale insurence, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added lax, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable to the Company, lo the appropriate
authorities, though there has been slight delay in few cases. According to the information and
axplanations given to us, no undisputed amounts oulstanding as payable in respect of such statutory
dues wera in arrears as on 31st March, 2016 for a peried of more than six months from the date they
became payable. -

(b) There are no dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or dity of excise which
have not been deposiled on account of any dispute. There are following dues of value added tax as on
-31st March, 2018 which have not been deposited on account of dispute:

“IName of the|Namre of Amount (T) [Period to which the amount|Forum  where  dispule s
Statute the Dues relates pending
Haryana ValuefValue . 417315/-| Assassmant Yéar 2012-|Before the Joint Excise and
Added Tax Acl|added lax 2013 Taxation Commissioner
2003 . : {Appeals), Haryana

53




.
HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

{viii) The Company has no! defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial institution or bank. The
Company does not have any loans or borrowing from Government during the year. The Company also does
not have any outstanding debeniures during the year.

{ix) The moneys raised during the year by way of term loans from financial instilution have been applied for the
purposes for which those were raised. The Company has nol raised any money during the year by way of
initial public offer or further public-offer (including debt instruments).

(x) According to the information and explanations given 16 us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

{xi) The Company has paid managerial remuneration to Mr. Anurag Gupta during Lhe year under audit and the
sama has been paid as approved by the members under provisions of Companies Act, 1956 for a period of
five years with effect from 1st February, 2012 in ihe Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29th
September, 2012, '

{xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not & Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is nol applicable.

{xiii) According to the information and explanalions given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transaclions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial stalements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv} According to the information and explanalions given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully
or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of ihe Order is not applicable.

(xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 010505N

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Place: Hisar Partner

Dale : 30.05.2016 ‘ ’ Membarship No. 088447
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT _
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 {"the Act”)

NEEE : ) .
1 We have audited the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting of Hisar Spinning Mills Limited ("the .
Company’) as of 31st March, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2 The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the intemal control over financial reporting crteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities

< include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company's policies, the 'safeguarding of ils assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, lhe

- accuracy and completeness of the accounling records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

3 Our responsibility is {0 express an opinion on the Company's inlernal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of he Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Inslitute of Charlered Accounlants of India. Those Standards and the

- Guidance Nole require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

¥ ..

4.. Our. audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeﬁu'aEy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial repomng included obtaining an understanding of. mtemal financial controls
over financial reporhng assessing the risk; {hat a material weakness exists, and lesung and evaluating the
design and operatmg effectiveness ‘of mlemal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected

_ depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of lhe risks of material m:sstatement of the
financial stalements whether due to fraud or error.

5 Wae believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and._appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonabile
assurance regarding the refiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting- principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records thal, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairy reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; {2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and thal receipts and expendilures of the company are being made only in accordance with.
authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assels that could have a material effect on the financial slatements.

Inherent Limitations of tnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
7 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstalements due to error or
fraud may occur and nol be datected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting lo future periods are subject 1o the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the poiicies or procedures may detedorate.

Opinion

8 In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such intemal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effeclively as at
3ist March, 2016, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of tnternal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of (ndia.

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD ‘
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 010505N

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Place: Hisar Pariner

Date ; 30.05.2016 Membership No. 088447
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Balance Sheet as at 31st'March 2016 . )
- ) ) . S . In¥
Particulars - ] Note No. As at 31.03.2018 - As at 31.03.2015
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES o ! : : . :
Sharehoiders’ funds . - )
(a) Share capital | P 3 43850000 . 43850000
{b) Reserves and surplus 4 27185355 " 71035355 21232518 65082518
-~ Non-current-liabilities ' .
{a) Long-term borrowings 5 45799079 ] 17285661
Current llabilities _
{a) Short-term borrowings 8 - : 5864557
'l {b) Trade payables 7 ‘4127509 3800487
{c) Other cumrent liabilities a 23088293 -+ 10582455
{d) Short-term provisions 9 236534 27452336 - _2031 7499
! Total 144287670 102893678
ASSETS .
i Non-cusrent assets - . C : . }
{a) Fixed assets 10 T ’ .
{iy Tangible assets . 69785199 - 29458242
(i1} Capitgl work-in-progress 5904313 3824017
| (b). Deferred tax assets (net) . 1 2216056 1235187
f {¢) Long-term loans and advances 12 - 3008329 . 7132244
{d) Othar non-cument assats 13 3337536 B4251433 2844574 48494884
Current assets . ’
(a) inventories 14 '38017722 34743714
(b) Trade receivables 15 136835273 8311182
{c) Cash and cash equivalents 18 8534326 H 1306886917
{d) Short-term loans and advances R TR B70u59 v 377549
(8) Other current assets 18 . 2957857 60038227 1701252 58201014
Total : . _ . . - 144287870 - 101.‘695678
Significant accounting policies 2 . ‘

The accompanying nates form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our attached report of even date
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD ’
Chartared Accountants for and on behat!f of the Board
Firm Registration No. 010505N 4 -

- Il ~

Place: Hisar (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN} *. (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA} (TRILOKI NATH GOEL).
_ Date : 30.05.2018 s - Partnar Managing Director . Diractor
] Membership No. 088447 o DIN: 00192085 DIN: 00183103
(ANURAG GUPTA) (TANU SHARMA) (SHARAD GOEL)
Executive Direclor Company Secretary.  Chief Financial Officer
OIN; 00192688
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year anded 31st March 2016

R IR

et l

The accompanying noles form an integral part of tha financial statements. -

As per our attached report of even dale.

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 010505N

Place: Hisar
Date : 30.05.2016

(RAJESH KUMAR JAIN)
Partner
Membership No. 088447

Managing Director
DIN: 00192985

(ANURAG GUPTA] (TANU SHARMA)
Exacutive Director
DIN: 00192888

. a-: 110 -,
Particulars Note No. For tha yaar 23i14 JFor the:year' 71U
ended 31.03.2016 - ended 31.03.201502
REVENUE . B SR (8)
Revenue from operations 19 239274264 2uf'tue Bra239216185 7
Cther incomne 20 653753 L. 1262977
) - . . woiibsell tn - no
Total revenue 239928017 ** * " 7240479162 °
L e A
EXPENSES Lo
Cost of materials consumed 21 141839890 157134214
{-) Increase/ decrease in inventories - 22 657379 584779
Employee benefits expense 23 40090864 3075293
Finance costs 24 4882728 2831478
Deprecialion 25 23062992 13453257
Other expanses 26 58687820 531164861
Total expenses 233001673 230175482
Proflt before exceptional itams and tax 6926344 10303680
Exceptional items 27 1759768 .
Profit before tax . B686112 10303680
(1) Current tax 1714144 4606132
(2) Deferred tax 10191314 2733275 -2189213 2416919
Profit for the period 5952837 7886761
Earnings per equity share (EPS): 28
(Nominal value of equity share - T 10/)
Basic EPS (X) : 1.58 2.114
Diluted EPS (T) 1.59 2.11
Significant accounting policias 2

for and on behalf of the Board

{GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (TRILOKI NATH GOEL)

Director
DIN: 00193103

(SHARAD GOEL)
Company Secretary  Chiel Financial Officer
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" iHISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED . s
'Cash Flow Statsment for.the.year.endad’ 31st Harch 2016
- s e e iin®
Particulars fForthe - Forithe
,;yearended  'year.ended
: : ‘31, oszme '31.03.2015
A i.Cash'row.f_mm.oporatinq activities ' -
:Profit before extraordinary items and tax . 18686112 10303680
rAdjustments for: _
-Depreciation . 23062992 13453257
#Profit-on disposal of tangible fixed assets -1759768 -
--Unrealised foreign exchange loss/ (-) gain o 4414 22318 -
" Provision for mark:to market loss on derivative instruments . . EREETPURE & o8 WOSE S
[nterest income ' 800725 ~1029326
«Inferest expense 4330606 2504313
YOperating profit before :extraordinary .[tems ‘and "working capital 34039176 25209606
changes or
N . -
“"Movement in'working capital: - h : b
{Decrease! (-)increase in trade receivables ?229329 b “‘917503'55:'E':?’.’ﬂr
Z“Decrease/ (- )tnmase in inventories N -12?4008 37?‘6334 : ', ';
“Decrease/ (-) increase.in loans and ‘advances and other assets ' 2153646 «- 3869078
Increase/ (-) decrease in trade, payables and Giher Gabilties 4257682, +--223242" 2
A .r,n .
_ Cash generation from operation before axtraomlmary item 3194716? "*25858655
_Direct taxes paid < - > I -1498940~ ' -4559?15» ;.;,
Net cash flow from/ (-} used. in opemtmg acﬁvlﬂu.l,, 5 - .’304@_2;‘.!4::_’-}_21M' ‘ ;i‘iﬁ
g “:?‘-*"‘3‘:‘* S e S as e
e R SRHIEEE i s RS
B. 'Cash'flow from Investing activities. * L N I ':h “
! ’ r“'.' [ ?‘v:t:giﬁ‘; N
..{:) Purchase of tangible fixed assets (mcludmg capltal work- tn-pfogress) -66620354; -4?58?19 y
..Proceeds from disposal.of fixed assets 2914400 - -
-(-) Increase/ decrease in non-current bank balances - ‘term fdepOSits 600107
-pledged with banks towards margin against bank guarantees _
"{-) Inéreasef decrease in current term deposits with bank having less than 12800000  -12900000
12 months maturity at the year end (term deposit receipt pledged with
bank towards margin money.against letter of credil)
Interest received 870533 414094 -
Net cash flow from/ (<) used in‘investing activities 50535538  -17244625
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For the For the
o ) yearended year ended
.o o . _ 31.03.2016  31.03.2015

Particulars =~

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from /{-) repayment of long-term borrowings ‘ 36655147 -1024097

Proceeds from /{-) repayment of short-term borrowings : -5864557 1442435
Interest paid 4335870 -2539270
Net cash flow from/ {-} used In financing activities 26454720 8120932
Net increasel.(-) decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6367409 4056617
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 166917 4223534
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end of the year ... .* . 6534326 166917
Components of cash and cash equivalents
-Balances with banks in current/ cash credit accounts 4557554 32447
- Cheques, drafts on hand or under clearing . 1704270 -
Cash on hand : 272502 134470
6534326 166917

Note: The cash flow statement has been prepared under the ‘indirect method" as set oul in Accounting
Standard (AS} - 3 ' Gash Flow Statemenl'.

"> Asperour attached report of even date ..

- T e e -

for JAIN & ANIL SOOD
. Chartered Accouniants for and on behalf of the Board
Firm Registration No. 010505N

-

tF

Place: Hisar (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) (GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA} (TRILOK! NATH GOEL)

Date : 30.05.2016 - Partner Managing Director Direclor .
Membership No, 088447 . DIN: 00192985 DIN: 00193103

(ANURAG GUPTA)  (TANU SHARMA) (SHARAD GOEL)
Executive Director Company Secretary  Chief Financiat Officer
DIN: 00192888 ~ ° ,
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'Notes.to:financial statements for.the;year ended:31st March 2016

1. i‘Cor‘porata:identiﬂcatio'n:numbor,and:naturelof‘qp_orations : , .
‘Corporate identification ‘number of the company :is .L17112HR1992PLC031621 .and the ‘companyiis
«engaged in.the'business of manufacturing.and sale:of cotton blended yam. - ' o

2, :Significant accounting policles )

({a} 1Basis. of preparation
‘The financial statements have been iprepared under the ihistorical .cost ‘convention ion accrual -
'basis of accounting.and in-accordance with accounting principles generally accepted.in'India-and
‘comply with ‘the accounting standards 'notified under the relevant provisions .of ithe :Companies
Act, 2013, : - -

All"assets and liabilities have been -classified -as current or'non-current ‘as |per the company's

‘normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in'the: Schedule 1l to the . Companies Act,'2013,

‘Based on the nature of products and the ‘time :between ‘the acquisition .of assets for processing

.and their realisation in cash or cash-equivalents, the company has ascertained its.operating:cycle
--as twetve:months for.the purpose-of current ~non current classification.of, assets and liabilities.

{{(b) -Use of estimates- : :
~-The .preparation of financial -statements in conformity .with generally .accepted :accounting
T principles ‘requires 'management ‘to ‘make estimates :and ‘assumptions ithat :affect-the reported
- ‘amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent Jiabilities .at:the date:of the'financial
.statements and the resuits:of .operations during the-reporting year.end. Although:these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge .of current .events -and actions, actual results
could differ from these estimates.

{{c) .Revenue recognition ) o i )
»-Revenue from sale.of manufactured goods ‘and :sale .of waste is recognised on transfer-of :all
-significant:risks:and rewards of ownership o the ‘buyer which coincides with.dispatch:of goods to
zithe customers.-Revenue.from sale-of manufactured-goods and sale of waste is disclosed net of

> ~retums, if any, - ° Ceene S

' ‘Export sales are accounted-on'the basis of dats of Bl of lading, [Export benéfits ‘are.accounted
‘for.on.accrual basis. . | T

((d}) \Employee bensfits - g R

{{i) Short-term employee benafits L ‘ o : A S

!Shor_#termuemplc';yee:beneﬂts:ara’reoognised:as'an-expense:al:the:undiécmmﬁad:érrioiﬁfﬁj:&\@'f%?‘:;"_""
‘statement of profit andloss of the yearin.whichithe related service:is rétidered; - -- H-.t,;;:%_

. DA -

‘:—‘:—-\ w-"-"‘i ’-i-"'"“" }
L AR A L T LTI L I

I I T e S opid

LRI TN AT L
.l}}.'.‘-'"" PR, - q

({il}:Defined:contribution;plan - provident fund and pension'furid . A RT
~iThe:contribution:to;provident fund.and:pension fund are-considered ds defined:contribution plaris ».1 ;. : :
:and :are :charged ito the :statement of ;profit and loss .as .théy (atidue, it.i?s'é“diqn theamoynt AT

£
TV A A

T

contribution required:to be:made. . ¢
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(iii} Compensated absences . .
Based on the leave rules of tha company, employees are not permitted to accumulate leave. Any

unavailed privileged leave to the extent encashable is paid to the employees and charged to the
statement of profit and loss for the year.

(iv) Defined benefit plan - gratuity

Liability for gratuity is provided through a policy taken from Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC) by a trust formed for the purpose. The net present value of obligation towards gratuity to
employees is actuarially determined as at the balance sheet date based on the Projected Unit
Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss for the year. :

(e} Fixed assets

Fixed assets have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable by the company from the taxing authorities) and any direclly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. When assets are sold or discarded
their cost and ‘accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss
resulting from their disposal is included in the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at the balance sheet date are
disclosed as 'Capital advances' under the note of ‘Long-term loans and advances' and the cost of
fixed assels not ready for their intended use before such date are disclosed under 'Capital work-
in-progress’. ;

{f) Depreciation
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been provided on written down value method over the

estimated usefu! life of assets in the manner prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013.

Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/ discardment of assets, is calculated pro rata from
the date of such addition or up to the date of such salef discardment, as the case may be.

(g) Impairment of assets
Al each balance sheet date an assessment is made whether any indication exists that an asset
has been impaired. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss i.e., the amount by which the
carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount is provided in the books of account,

{h} Inventories

Inventories (other than saleable waste) have been valued at lower of cost and net realisabie
- value. However, raw materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are
Adt written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are
expected to be sold at or above cosl. The cost in respect of various items of inventory is
computed as under : Brola o sy wnersobincwvesy o nransdndy o Lot ’

- LT - 1 P - b oan - .
SR e LT LRl - + .

i wincase of raw material, stores and spares, diesel'and packing matérial at first-in-first-out (FIFO)
cost method plus direct expenses. L :

sty
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- in case of work-in-progress at raw .material cost (determined on FIFO cost méthod) plus
appropriate portion of conversion cost and other overheads mcurrad dependmg upon the stage of
oompletton

- in case of finished goods: at raw material cost (determined on FIFO cost method) plus
conversion cost, packing oosl and other overheads incurred to bring the goods up to their
present condition and location.

Saleable waste has been vatued at estimated net realisable value

(i} Effects of change in foreign exchange rates
(i) Foreign Currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting cumency, by applying to

the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting cumrency and fomagn
currency al the date of the transaction.

{ii) At each balanoe sheet date foreign curency monetary items are reported using the closing
rate.

" (i) Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items-at rates different from
3those at which they were initialty recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
; statements, are recognised as income or as expense in the year in.which they arise.

(iv) In case of Forward Exchange Contracts for firm commitments or highty probable forecas!
1 transactions, the pricing period of which extends beyond the balance sheet date, keeping in view
. the principle of prudence as enunciated in AS — 1, “Disclosura of Accounting Policies™, suitable
£ provision is made for likely loss, if any in respect of such outstanding derivative cantracts at the

balance sheet date by marking them to market.

{ Government grants
Govemnment grants related to revenue have been deducted from related expense which they are
" intended to compensate. Government grants of the nature of promoters contnbunon have been
1 credited 10 Capital Reserve.

(k) Borrowing costs ’
; Borrowing costs that are attributable lo the acquisition or construction of qualnfymg assels are
: capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarity
* substantial period 'of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised
-as an expensa in the statement of profit and lqss.

~(l)~Tax expense

- Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Provision for current tax is made in accordance
- ~with the provisions of tncome:tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax resulting from timing differences
between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of
~ rgversal in one or more subsequent periods is accounted for using the tax rates and laws that are
senacted or substantively enacted as on. the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
: recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income
: will be available against which such deferred lax assets can be realised. However, deferred tax
.~ assels arising on account of brought forward iosses and unabsorbed depreciation are recognised
- only when there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable

income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during specified period. in
the year in which-the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset in accordance
with the recommendations contained in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the said assel is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and
loss and shown as MAT credit entitement. The company reviews the same at each balance
sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is
no longer convincing evidence to the effect that company will pay normal Income Tax during the
specific period.

{m) Segment reporting

(n)

The company operates only in one business segment viz., "yarn’ which is the reportable segment
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) - 17 "Segment Reporting'
notified under the Companies (Accounling Standard) Rules, 2006.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recogmsed when there
is a present obligation as a resull of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of
resources. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent
assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financiai statements.
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Equity shares of 3 10/- each
Preferenoesha:ésofﬁﬂ'—M
Total

lssued . _
Equity shares of T 10¥-each

5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 10/- each
Tohal

Subscribed and fully paid
Equity shares of T 10~ each

5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of 2 10/- each

Total

HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
in¥
" Asat - Asat
S - 31.03.016 - - 31032015
3. Share capital o
. Number of Amount Number of Amount
- —=~Authorised-

8000000 80000000 8000000 80000000
2000000 20000000 2000000 20000000

100000000 100000000

3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000

650000 6500000 650000 6500000

a.‘} e
3735000 37350000 3735000 37150000

650000 6500000 650000 6500000

_Lese 43850000

The reconciliation of the niumber of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Equity shares of T 10/- each:

Nmberdhmmt&nberdm

shares shares

Number of shares and amount at the beginning
Add : Shares issued
. Numbey of shares and amount at the end

3735000 37350000 3735000 - 37350000

3735000 37350000 3735000 37350000

5% Redeemable non cumulative preference shares of T 10/ each:

Particulars

Number of Amount Number- of Amount
shares . shares

+~ Number of shares and amount at the beginning
Add : Shares issved

Number of shares and amount at the end

- 650000 6500000 650000 6500000

650000 6500000 650000 6500000




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED Ei @

As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares:
Equity shares: The company has one class of equity share having par value of T 10/- per share. Every member hokling
equity shares and entitied to vote and present in person or by proxy shall have voting rights which shall be in the same
proportion as the capital paid on the equity share or shares (whether fully paid up or pan.ly paid up) held by him bears to
the total paid up equity capital of the company

Preterence ghares: The company has issued 5% redeemable non cumulative preference shares having par value of ¥
10/ per share. The preference shareholders enjoy preferential rights in respect of payment of dividend and repayment
of capital over the equity sharehoklers. The preference shares shall not entitle the holders thereof Lo any voting rights,

except in raspact of rasolutions which directly affect the rights attached (o the prelerences shares, and in the event the
company does not pay any dividend on the said preference shares no voling rights-shall accrue to such holders on
account of non-payment of dividend. The said preference shares will be redeemable at par al the discretion of the
hoard either in fump sum or in four quarterly instaiments commencing from 01.01.2024 and ending on 31.12.2024 but
before the expiry of 20 years from the date of allotment (27.07.2005) subject to the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and other applicable legislations as may be in force from time to time and the provisions of the articles of
association of the company. ' '

Shares in the company held by each sharsholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
Name of the shareholder Number of %held Number of % held

shares shares
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- sach: . - - .

5% Redeemabls non cumula, | eference shares of T 10/- each:

Gopal Krishan Gupta 118000 18.15 110000 16.92
M.L. Kansal 70000 10.77 70000 10.77
Nikhil Goel - _ 302000 4546 132000 20.31
Bindu Goel - - 92000 14,15
Anurag Gupta ' 53000 8.46 55000 8.48

Anuj Gupta 55000 8.46 55000 8.46
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

-~ COMpany sre secured by:

in¥
- As at As ut
: 31.03.2016 31.03.2013
4. Reserves and surplus - -
Capitat reserves’ R
As at the commencement of the year 3342000 " 3342000
Add: receipt during the year - 3342000 - 3142000

Surplus i.e. balance in statement of profit and koss
* As at the commencement of tha year 17890518 10003757 .
Add: Profit for the year as per the statament of profit and loss 5852837 23843355 FBB86761 17890518

Total 271853155 21232518

5. Long-term borrowings

Securad {*) .
Tem loan from bank - - -

Term loans from financial institution ’ 45751809 16600000

Other long-termn borrowings from banks 48170 45799979 695661 17295881
Total - 45799979 17295661

{*) Naturs of security and guarantee by directors or others:

Term loan from bank: :

Term loan (rom bank i.e., Punjab National Bank with balance cutstanding ‘of T nil as on 31st March 2016 {previous year
X 361938/} (including amount of principal due with in next 12 months from the balance sheet data amounting to T nll
{previous yesr ¥.361838/-) shown under sub-head ‘Currenl maturities of long-term borrowings' in note no. 8 'Other
current liabilities’] is securad by: .

{a) hypothecation of building constructed! to be constructed, plant and machinery instalied up ta 31.03.2011, other
assats and equipments purchased with the bank loan along with furniture & fixture.

(b} first charge ranking paripassu with Small Industries Development Bank of India {SIDBI) by way of equitable
mertgage of all the immovable properties i.a., land & buliding thereon of the company situated al VPO Dabra, Disn,
Hissar, admeasuring about 34 kanal 14 martas owned by the company,

The above securities are also held as security for- loan repayable on demand {cash credit) from Punjab National Bank
{reler note no. & "Short-term horrowings’).

Term loan from bank l.e., Punjab National Bank is further covered by personal guarantee of the directors of the
company namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh, Anurag Gupta and Sh. T.N. Goel and by Sh. M.L. Kansgl, promoter of
. the company.

Term loans from financlal institution: .
Term loans from financial institution i.e., Small industries Develogrment Bank of India (SIDBI), with sanctioned amount
._of T 80000000/~ and balance outstanding of T 59722809/ as on 31st March 2018 (previous year T 21930000/-)
Tlinclisding amoudt of principal due with in next 12 months from the balance shest dats amounting to T 13971000-
" {previous year ¥ 5330000/-) shown under sub-head 'Current malurities of long-term bomowings’ in note no. 8 "Other
current fiabilities’], togethar with interest, costs, expenses, penal interest and all other monies dues and payable by the

Q

' AIPrimary Security; e

") fiest chiarge .by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBY of the plant, machinery, equipment, ioofs. spares,

accessorias and.all gther assets which have baen or proposed 10 be acquired under the projects! schames.
- Yan 67
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED %

{i} Extensnon of rrst chargs by way of hypothecation in favour of SIDBI of all the bormower's movables, mdudmg the
movables, plant, machinery, machinery spares, tools and accassorias, office equipments, computers, tumitures and
fixtures, located at 5th KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPO Dabra, Hisar, Haryana and acquired afier 01.04.2011.

——

{ii) Extensson of first pari passu charge with Punjab National Bank by way of morigage of all inmovable propertias of
the company, both present and futire situated at Gth KM Stone, Hisar Bhiwani Road, VPQ Dabra, Hisar, Haryana
admeasuring 34 kanals and 14 martas including factory shed, building and structure thereon, -

Tarm loans from finandial Instittion i.e., Small Industrias Devetopment Bank of India (SIDBI) with sanctioned amount of
T 80000000/~ are further coverad by imevocable and unconditional personal guarantee of the directors of the company
namely Sh, Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta and Sh. T.N. Goel. Out of thesa term loans of T 80000000/ from
SIDBI, term loan with sanclioned amounl of T 31000000/- is also covered by irevocable and unconditional personal
guarantee of Sh. M.L. Kansal and term loan with sanctioned amount of T 49000000/- is covered by imevocable and
unconditional personal guaraniee of Smt. Sapna Kansal, director of the company.

Other long-term borrowings from banks:

Other long-term borrowings from banks are secured by hypothecation {marked with Registering Authority, Molor
Vehicles) of vehicles acquired out of proceeds of the said borrowings from banks,

Terms of repayment:
Term loan from bank:

(i) Term loan of T 11688000/- is repayabla in 28 quarterdy inslalliments of ¥ 418000/- each with effect from March 2009,
Rale of interest as at the previous year end 11.75%# p.a.

in?
Yearwise repayment schedule 2015.20168
Term loans from bank 361938

Torm loans from financial institution:

(i) Term loan of T 29300000/- is repayable in 66 monthly instaliments commencmg 18 months after the date of first
disbursement i.e., 02.08.2011. The first 18 instaliments of T 300000/~ each, next 18 installments of T 400000/- each,
next 18 instaliments of ¥ 510000/- each, next 11 installments of X 525000/ each and Lhe last final installment of ¥
§45000/-. Rate of inleres| 11.95% p.a. as at year and. (previous year 12.25% p.a.}¥

(i) Term ‘oan of T 1700000/- is rapayable in 66 monthly installments commencing, 18 months after the date of firsl
dishursement i.e., 02.08.2011. Tha first 18 instaliments of T 15000/- each, next 18 instaliments of T 25000/- each, next
18 instalments of T 30000/~ each, next 11 installments of T 35000/- each and the last final instaliment of ¥ 55000/-,
Rate of interest 11.95% p.a. as at year end, (previous year 12.25% p.a.J#

{iii) Term loan of T 49000000/~ (disbursed T 43122809/~ up o 31st March 2016) is repayable in 72 monthly installments
compiising of first ‘73 monthly instaliments of ¥ 681000¢- and last installment of T 649000/~ ~ommencing after a
moratorium of 12 months from the date of first dlsbunsemenl of the loan during May 2015, Rate of interest 10.70%# p.a.
as at year end.

o

in¥

Yoarwise  2015-2016 2015.2017 2017-2018 = 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023

repayment ’ .

schedule :

Term loans 5330000 13971000 15612000 10852000 8172000 8172000 8172000 649000
© from : ' ’ :
financial . -
inglitution ' R
# Rate of interest is without considering interest subsndy under TUF scheme
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ; @@
Other long-term borrowings from banks: y ~
(i} Other long-term borrowing from ICICI Bank Limited amounting to 2 1500000/ is repayable in 36 equaled monthly

insiallments (EM!s) of T 48585/- (inchuding interest) starting from 1st May 2014, Lasl :nstalmem due on 1st April 2017,
Rate of interest 10.26% p.a. as at year end. (previous year 10.26% p.a.) - K

(ii) Other long-term borrowing from HDFC Bank Limited amounting to ¥ 800000/- is repayable in 36 equated monthiy
installments {EMIs} of T 25600/- (including interest) starting from 5th August 2013. Last instalment due on Sth July
- 2016. Rate of interast 9.81% p.a. as at yaar end. {previous year 9.81% p.a.)

in?
Yearwise repayment schedule 2015-2016  2016-2017 _ 2017-2018

Other long term bomowings [rom banks 775724° 647491 48170




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

’ inT
As at As at
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
6. Short-term borrowings

Secured ()
Loan repayable on demand from bank {cash credil) - 5864557
Total = _ : — e TR
{**) Nature of security and guarantee by directors or others:

Loan repayable on demand from bank {cash credit) is secured by hypothecation of stocks of various raw malerials viz
manulacturing materal, rew materials including excisable raw malerials, stocks in process, semi finished goods.
finishad goods {including bought out finishad goods) and hypothecation of entire receivables! book debls,

The said facility from Punjab National Bank is further secured by first chamge en machinery of tha company installed up
to 31.03.2011 and firs{ charga ranking paripassu with Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBY) by way of
equitable mongage of all the immovable propertias i.e., land and building constructed thereon of the company situated
at VPO Dabra, Distt, I-iissar. admeasuring about 34 kanal and 14 maras owned by the company.

Loan repayable on demand from bank (cash credit) iz also covered by personal guarantee of the directors of the
company namely Sh. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Sh. Anurag Gupta, Sh. Triloki Nath Goel and Smi. Sapna Kansal,

7. Trade payablas

Micro, small and medium enterprises (***) - o -
Others - 4127509 3890487

. Total - 4127509 3890487 -
{***} The company has nol received the required information from its suppliers regarding their status under the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Cevelopment Act, 2006. Hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpald as at the
yesar end together with inlerest paid/ payable as required under the said Acl have not been made.

8. Other current labilities

Currant maturities of long-term borrowings . 14618491 6467662
Interest accruad but not due on bormrowings 400226 174009
Qther payables
- Agdvances from customers - 56133
- Creditors against capital goods 3076400 163950
- Accrued employea benefits expense 411377 266686
“Nwcrsmeari Statutory- dues w2 694603 .-~ 327109
- Other liabilities 3887186 8069576 3086908 3920784

Total oo B 73088293 - 10562455

9. Short-tarm provisions

Provision for current income tax (net of prepaid taxes) : 189845 - -
Provision for employee benefits 45589 . .

Total 236504 -
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED . ) I i é i
: ) . int
As at _ As at
31.03.2016 31.02.2015
11. Deferred tax asseta (net} - ~
Delerred tax assots .
Depreciation on fixed assets 2198165 3235187
Other timing differences - T. 19891 . - {
Defarred tax assats (net) a 2216056 T 3235187
12. Long-term loans and sdvances
{unsecured, conskiered good)

. Capital advances . 559970 5050617
Security deposits 2157514 2022589
Prepaid expenses . . : 290845 59038
Total 3008329 7132244

13. .Other non-current assats
{unsecured, considered good)
Non-current bank batances - temn deposits {pledged with banks 2457607 1857500
towards margin against bank guarantees) -
Interest accrued on term deposits with bank ¢ 879929 783338

" Advance lo gratuity trust : - 204136

Total ' 3337536 . 2844574
14. Inventorias - . -
{Refer note na. 2 {h) for mode of valuation) : . :
Raw material ", - . 15730869 14284718
Work-in-progress 5586056 2828652
Finished goods 10346006 . 13825332
Stores and spares, diesel and packing material - , 4266768 3781532
[including in transit - T Nil {previous yaear - T 198950/-)) Y
Saleable waste . 78023 213180
Tatal - 36017722 4743714
15. Trade receivables
{unsacurad, conskiered good)
Qutstanding for a pariod exceeding six months from the date they . . 9429
becamea due for payment . :
Quistanding for a period not exceeding six months from the date 13655273 . BIDTS3
they became dug for payment
Total 13655273 6311162
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED .
. : : iInt
T As at o As at
. . 31.03.2016 31.03.2015
16. Cash and cash squivalents - T : .
Balances with banks o -
- in current/ cash credil acocounts 4557554 32447
- in term deposit accounts (hald as margin money againsi letter of credit) - 12900000
. -nCheques, drafty on hand of under clearing, 1704270 .
Cash on hand 272502 134470
b Total 6524326 ' 13066917
Of the 'above, the batances that meet the definition of cash and 6534326 166817
cash equivalents as per Accounting Standard (AS) - 3 ‘Cash Flow
Statement’ is:
3
17, Shot_‘l-tan'n loans and advances
{unsecured, considered good)
] . Advance income tax {net of provision for income 12x) 144141 197919
Advances to suppliers of goods and sarvicas 444900 -
Taxes and duties recoverable/refundable 3957 13488
Other loans and advances 33720 5033
Prepaid expenses : 244241 161499
Total . " B70959 377949
18. Other current azsets
h {unsecured, considerad good)
‘ Interesi subsidy receivable i . 2128486 1103588
i interast accrued on depasits with banka and security daposits ' 165008 531495
Export benefits receivable . - . 61658
Excisa duty refundable under EFCG scheme - _ 664375 .
Tangible fixed assets hald for sale - 4513

Total 2957957 1701252




HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

o

in?
For the For the
. year ended year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
19, Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Manufactured goods 237091442 236858303
- 237091442 236358303
Other operating revenues
Sale of wasle 1910535 2245726
Sale of scrap 10338 50500
Export benefits 261949 61656
. 2182822 2357882
Total 239274264 239216185
Details of sale of manufactured goods under broad heads -
Cotton blended yam 237091442 236858303
20. Cther income
Interest income 600725 1029325
Net gain on foreign cumency transactions and transtation . 703
Insurance claim received - 170505
Miscellaneous income 53028 8443 l
Total 653753 1262977 - 1
, )
21. Cost of materials consumed
Cost of raw materials consumed
Opening stock of raw materials 14284718 17761617
Add: purchase of raw malerials 144015581 153829907
158300299 171591524
Less :
Sale of raw materials 729540 172592
Closing stock of raw materials 15730869 14284718
Cost of materials consumed - Total 141839890 157134214
Details of raw material consumed under broad heads
Textile waste/ Cotton waste 103354828 107322944
Potyester staple fiber 38432687 49811270
Others 52375 -
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in ¥
For the For the
year.ended year ended
31.03.2018 31.03.2015
22. (-} Increase/ decrease in inventories T
Closing inventories . ' .
~Finished goods. - 103458008 13825332
Saleable waste ‘ 78023 213180
Work-inprogress _ - 5596056 2838952
16020085 16677464
Opening inventories . '
Finished goods ‘ 13825332 15312876
Saleable waste 213180 591678
Work-in-progress 2638952 1337689
16677484 17242243
{-} Increase/ decrease in inventories - Total 657379 Se4T19
Detalls of inventories of finished goods under broad heads
Closing inventoriss
Cotton blended yam 10345006 13825332
Opening Inventories
Cotton blended yam . 13825332 " 15312876
. . r '
Details of inventories of work-Inprogress under broad heads :
Closing inventories : . -
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress - 5596056 2638952
Opening i'nvontorios ) o
Cotton blended yam work-in-progress ' 2638952 1337689
23. Employes benefits expenss .
Salaries, wages and bonus 3497727 . . 2M7s53
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 573836 - 358245
Staff welfare expenses 19501 1495
Total ‘ . ' 4030864 1075293
24. Finance costs )
Interest expense ' 4480496 c . 2504313,
Interest paid on shortfall in payment of advance income tax 110110 -
Othar borowing costs 92122 - 327185
Total . 4682728 2031478
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

%

in?
For the For the
" year ended year ended
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
25. Depreciation -
Depreciation on tangible assets {refer note no. 10) 23062692 13453257
‘Total 23062992 13453257
26. Other expenses ’
Consumption of stores and spare parts 7780343 7671168
Packing material consumed - 2623110 2179329 ]
Diesel consumed 2075420 4845544 '
Power expenses 38374790 33508880
Contract iabour charges and expenses 1506826 - 1266563
Repair and maintenance
- Machinery 1149976 968760
- Building 303028 -
Insurance charges 388364 373667
Fees and subscription 378547 . 251854
Audi ti
- Audit lees 114500 112360
- Tax audil fees 22900 22472
- Certification fees 34350 33108
Legal and professional charges 66863 213910
Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation - mpltal goods 405758 -
Net boss on foreign currency transactions and transiation 6781
Mark lo market loss on derivative instruments 64373 . .
Freight and cartage outward 745287 68453
Clearing and forwarding charges (export) 21211 352218
Rebate and discount 1367 1725
Misceﬂgneous expenses 1412466 1239730
Total 58667320 53116461
2. Exceptional iteﬂ;s
Profit/ (-) loss on disposat of tangible fixed assets : 1759768 -
' _— {
Total A 1759768 -
76 ‘
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"HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED

. S int
For the For the
yaar ended year ended
31.03.2016

31.03.2015

28. Earnings per squity share (EPS)

The calculation of EPS as disclosed in the statement of profit end loss has been mate in"accordance with Accounting
Standard {A5)-20 '‘Earning Per Share’ notified under the Companias (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006,

A statement on calcutation of EPS is as under;

Profit for the period attributable to equity shamaholders
Total (a)

Number of aquity shares outstanding during the year {nos.)
(Nominal vatue of equity share - T 10/}
Total {b)

Bask: EPS (¥) (a’)
Diluted EPS (T) (a/b)

Nota: There am no potaniial equity shares

23. Contingent Habilities and commitments
{to the extent not provided for)
{a) Contingent liabilities;
(i) Counter guaraniees issued to Punjab National Bank in respecl
of the guarantees issued by the said bank in favour of varous
government authorities.,

(ii} Disputed demand in respect of Value Added Tax

(i} Parformance bonds executed in favour of The President of
- India against exports obligations for purchase of capital goods
under Expor{ Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) schema

(i) Eslimated "amount of unexecuted capltal contracls (net of
advances)

77

5952837

s952m37

3735000

- 3735000

1.59
1.59

Kralnlin

397773

"

61494598

797211

.

7886781
7886781

3735000
3733000

21
2.11

1857500

27673306

38045756
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED ﬁ
30. Employes benefits ' :
" Disclosures as required by the Accounnng Standard (AS) - 15 "Employee benefits’ are as under:
{a) General description of plan: Defined gratuity benefit obligation (funded)
(b} Mathod of valuation of gratuity: Pro;ected Unit Credlt (PUC) Actuarial Method.
in?
[Pamculars [ 201 52016 | 2014-2015 |
{¢) Reconciliation of opening and closing balance. of defined benefit obligation:
1. |Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the period 586878 437889
2. |Current servica cost 1300086 95271
- 3. [Interest cost s 48950 35031
. | 4. |Net actuadal {-) gain/ loss on obligations 179644 34958)°
5. |Benefits paid -16768 -16269
6. |Present value of obligation as al the end of the peried 926710 © 586878
{d) Falirvalue of plan assets:
1. |Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period 791014 740630
2. |Expected return on plan assels 66845 68653
3. [Contributions 34641 -
4. |Benafits paid -16768 -16269
5. |Actuarial gain/ (-) loss on plan assets 4389 -
6. |Fair value of plan assets at the end of the penod 880121 791014
oy
(e) Amount recognised in the balance sheet:
1. [Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 926710 586878
2. |Fair value of plan asseats at the end of the penod 880121 791014
3. |Amount recognised in the balance sheet - asset/ {-) liability -48589 204138
(f} Expenses recognised during the period:
1. [Current service cost 130006 95271
2. linterest cost 48950 3501
3. |Expactad relurn on plan assels -6684 5 -86653
4. INel acluarial {-} gain/ loss recognised in the period 175255 34956
. 5. |Expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss 285366 98605
{g) Actuarial (-) gain/ joss on planned assets
1, {Actual return on plan assets 71234 66653
2. |Expected returm on plan assets 66845 68653
3. |Actuarial (-} gain/ loss on planned assets -4389| ' 0
{h} Actuarial {-) ..gain! loss recognised
1. jNet actuarial {-) gain/ loss on obligations 179644 34956
2. |Actuarial {-) gain/ loss on planned assels 4389 0
3. |Total actuarial {-) gain/ loss 175255 34856
4. |Actuarial (-) gain/ loss recognised 175255 34958
(i) Actuarial gssumptions: .
1. |Discount rale (per annum}) 8.00% 8.00%
2. [Salary growth rale {per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
3. |Monrtality IALM 2006-08|lALM  2006-
- Ultimate 08 Ultimate
4. |Expected rate of return {per annumy) 8.00% 9.00%
5. |wWithdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00% 2.00%
6. [Normal relirement age 58 years 58 years
Note: The above mformatlon is certified by the actuary and relied upon by statulory auditors.
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31. Related parties disciosures
{a) The name of the transactlng related party and descnpﬂon of the relationship between the pames

I

Koy management personnel:

Mr. Gopal Krishan Gupta, Managing Director
Mr. Anurag Gupta, Executive Director

Mr: Sharad'Goel? Chief'Financial Officer
‘Ms. Tanu Sharma, Company Secretary

Enterprises over which key management personnel or relative of such pers%nnel is able to
: exercise significant influence:
[ Usha Yams Limited '

(b) Related party transactions:
. int

Sr. |Description of the nature of 2015-2016 2014-2015 :
No. |transactions Key Enterprises overKey Enterprises over,

' management |which there is management which there is
personnel  [significant personnel significant i
influence influence -

' 1. [Remuneration
Mr. Anurag Gupla ' 360000 - 360000] -
Mr. Sharad Goel 03226 - - -
Ms. Tanu Sharma 125598 - 86742 -
2. |Purchases {including duties
~ |and taxes) -
Usha Yarns Limited - - 99315 - 1724457
3. |Sales (including duties and
taxes) . :
Usha Yarns Limited - 46524 - 515198

Remuneration to KMP has been taken from the date from which they became KMP.
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32 No amount of dividend has been proposed {o be drstnbuled 10 equrty and preference sharehdders for the penod

LL

-33 There is no impatrment of assets during the year..

34. Value of imports Calculated on CrI.F basiss . ... . : '
: : T ST ' © {In%)
Particulars e LR o -+ Forthe . -, _  Forthe
ST ey s . yearended - - -~ yearended
- RS , 31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
Slores and spareparts . | - e e - 207626 : s
Capital goods _ ST 45215111 v -

Total - L - . 4sann

35. Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account:” S )
- "' s {In?)

Particulars ST T e “Forthe - - For the
: ey . TR, ) ‘yearended | year ended

S ] - 31.03.2016 ©31.03.2015
Comemission on sales v o T - 75666 50921

Total e o : 75666 50921

- 36, Totalvalueda[lrrmortedrawmalenats storesandsparesoonsuneddum\gll\eﬁnamaiyearandtinlotalvalmofal
. indigenous raw rnalenals and slores and spares: similarly consumed and the pereenlage of each to the (otal
consumption;

»

, _ : in?
Particutars ' For the For the
S L e, - year ended - year ended
P R . 31.03.2016° . 31.03.2015
R T Amount | % [ Amount { % |}
(i) Raw materials r . . - _ .

- Imported . . . e .

- Indigenous _ 141838890 100% 157134214 100%
Total. L ' 141839890 100% 157134214 100%
(i) Stores and spares -

- Indigenous AR 7780343 100% 7677168 100%

Total : : 7780343 - 100% 7677168 100%
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37. Eamings in forsign exchange on account of: ‘
in?

Particulars ' - ’ For the For the
- ' yeur ended year anded
31.03.2016 31.03.2015
Export of goods caicutated on F.0.B. basis; 7519887 2650999
Total 7519887 2650999

38. The previous period figures have been regroupeda' reclassified, wherever necessary 1o conform to the cument period
presantation.

As per our aitached repodofevendala-
for JAIN & ANIL SOOD

Chartered Accountants for and on behalf of the Board
Firrn Registration No. 010505N

Place: Hisar (RAJESH KUMAR JAIN) {GOPAL KRISHAN GUPTA) (TR]LOKI NATH GOEL)
Dale : 30.05.2018 Partner " Managing Director - Director B

Membership No. 088447 DIN: 00192985 DIN: 00193103

(ANURAG GUPTA)  (TANU SHARMA) {SHARAD GOEL)
Expcutive Director  Company Secratary  Chief Finandal Officer
DiN: 00192888
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HISAR SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
Regd. Office & Works : 9th K.M. Stone,
Hisar-Bhiwani Road,
V.P.O. Dabra (Hisar) 125 005 (Haryana)
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